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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To The Members of Fleur Hotels Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Fleur Hotels
Private Limited ("the Parent”), its subsidiaries and Limited Liability Partnership Firm (the
Parent its subsidiaries and Limited Liability Partnership Firm together referred to as
“the Group”) , which comprise the Consoclidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023,
and the Consclidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and the Consclidated Statement of
Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information (herein referred to as “the consolidated
financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, and based on the consideration of reports of the other auditors on separate financial
statements of the subsidiaries and Limited Liability Partnership referred to in the Other
Matters section below, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the
information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”) in the manner so required
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended (‘Ind AS’) and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at March 31,2023,
and their consolidated profit, their consolidated total comprehensive income, their
consolidated cash flows and their consolidated changes in equity for the year ended on
that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143 {10) of the Act. Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility
for the Audit of the Consclidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI)} together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the
Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the
audit evidence obtained by us and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in
terms of their reports referred to in the sub-paragraphs (a) and (b) of the Other
Matters section below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our k
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

s The Parent’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the infermation included in the Board’'s Report but does not
inciude the consolidated financial statements, standalone financial statements-and our
auditor’s report thereon.

« Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

e In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility
is to read the other information, compare with the financia! statements of the
subsidiaries audited by the other auditors, to the extent it relates to these entities and,
in doing so, place reliance on the work of the other auditors and consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. Other information so far as it relates to the subsidiaries, is traced
from their financial statements audited by the other auditors.

« If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The Parent’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial
performance including other comprehensive income, consolidated cash flows and
consolidated changes in equity of the Group in accordance with the Ind AS and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India. The respective Board of Directors of the
companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the
Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that
are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whethaer due to fraud or errar, which have been used for the
purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the
Parent, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Management of the
companies included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to
continue as a geoing concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern hasis of accounting unless the management either intends to
liguidate or to cease aperations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group
responsible far overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group.
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Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasconable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consclidated financiai statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
cellusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

« (Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsiblte for expressing our opinion on whether the
Parent and its subsidiaries which are companies incorporated in India, has adequate
internal financial controls with reference to consclidated financial statements in place
and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

+ Conclude on the apprepriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists retated to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt an the ability of
the Group to continue as a going cencern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of cur auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group and its associates to cease to continue as a going concern,

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consoclidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.
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+ Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
audit of the financial statements of such entities included in the consaolidated financial
statements of which we are the independent auditers. For the other entities included
in the consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by the other
auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our
audit opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements
that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a
reasonably knowledgeable user of the consolidated financial statements may be
influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the
scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and {ii) to evaluate the
effect of any identified misstatements in the consolidated financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Parent and such other entities
included in the.consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matters

(a) We did not audit the financial statements of 5 subsidiaries and 1 Limited Liability
Partnership Firm (as mentioned below),whose financial statements reflect total assets
of Rs. 66,911.88 lakhs as at March 31, 2023, total revenues of Rs, 12,817.01 lakhs
and net cash outflows amounting to Rs. 103.31 lakhs for the year ended on that date,
as considered in the consolidated financial statements. s These financial statements
have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the
Management and our opinicn on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it
relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries
and Limited Liability Partnership, and our report in terms of subsection (3) of Section
143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries and Limited Liability
Partnership is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

Subsidiaries and Limited Liability Partnership Firm included in the consolidated
financial statements and not audited by us are as below:

A. Subsidiaries -

1. Berggruen Hotels Private Limitad
Inovoa Hotels and Resorts Limited
Cphrys Hotels Private Limited
Bandhav Resorts {P) Limited
Celsia Hotels Private Limited

G2 N SN UV AN N ]
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B. Limited Liability Partnership Firm

1. Mezereon Hotels LLP

Cur opinion on the consolidated financial statements above and our report on Other Legal
and Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with
respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration
of the reports of the other auditors on the separate financial statements of the
subsidiaries and Limited Liability Partnership incorporated in India referred to in the
Other Matters secticn above we report, to the extent applicable that:

a)

b}

c)

d)

e)

f)

g)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of
the aforesaid consaolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation
of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it
appears from our examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors.

The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
including Other Comprehensive Income, the Consclidated Statement of Cash
Flowsand the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity deait with by this
Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the
purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the
Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act,

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the
Parent as on March 31, 2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the
Company and the reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies
incorporated in India, none of the directors of the Group companies incorporated
in India is disqualified as on March 31, 2023 from being appointed as a director in
terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate Report in "Annexure A" which is based on the auditors’
reports of the Parent and subsidiary companies incorporated in India. Our report
expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements of
those companies.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amendad, in
our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us and based on the auditor’s reports of subsidiary companies
incorporated in India, the remuneration paid by the Parent and such subsidia

provisions of section 197 of the Act.
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h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Coempanies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as
amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

i) The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations
on the consolidated financial position of the Group - Refer Note 33(c) to the
consolidated financial statements;

i} The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts
including derivative contracts. Refer note 33(c) to the consclidated financial
statements .

iiiy There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Parent, and its subsidiary
companies incorporated in India. Refer note 48 to the consclidated financial
statements.

iv) (a)

(b)

The respective Managements of the Parent and its subsidiaries which
are companies incorporated in India, whose financial statements have
been audited under the Act, have represented to us and to the other
auditors of such subsidiaries respectively that, to the best of their
knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the note 47(v) to the consolidated
financial statements, no funds (which are material either individually
or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either
from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the Parent or any of such subsidiaries to or in any other
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or cn hehaif
of the Parent or any of such subsidiaries (“"Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

The respective Managements of the Parent and its subsidiaries which
are companies incorporated in India, whose financial statements have
been audited under the Act, have represented to us and to the othar
auditors of such subsidiaries respectively that, to the best of their
knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the note 47(vi) to the
censolidated financial statements, no funds have been received by the
Parent or any of such subsidiaries from any person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities ("Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recarded in writing or otherwise, that the Parent or any of such
subsidiaries shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
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(c) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered
reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances performed by us and
that performed by the auditors of the subsidiaries which are companies
incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited
under the Act, nothing has come to our or other auditor’s notice that
has caused us or the other auditors to believe that the representations
under sub-clause (i) and {ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a} and
{b) above, contain any material misstatement.

v) The Parent and its subsidiaries which are companies incorporated in India,
whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, have not declared
or paid any dividend during the year and have not proposed final dividend for
the year.

2. With respect to the matters specified in clause (xxi) of paragraph 3 and paragraph 4
of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("CARQO"/ “the Order”) issued by the
Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, according to the
information and explanations given to us, and based on the CARO reports issued by us
and the auditors of respective companies included in the consolidated financial
statements to which reporting under CARQ is applicable, as provided to us by the
Management of the Parent, we report that there are no qualifications or adverse
remarks by the respective auditors in the CARQ reports of the said respective
companies included in the consolidated financial statements except for the following:

Name of the company CIN Nature of Clause Number of CARO
relationship | report with qualification or
adverse remark
Ophrys Hotels Private | US5101DL2007PTC166020 | Wholly xvii
Limited Owned
Subsidiary
[IORA  Hotels  Private | U55101DL2009PTC192981 | Wholly xvii and ix (d}
Limited Owned
Subsidiary

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 1173&66W/W-100018

Chartered

Accountants

Rajesh Kumamr Agarwal

Partner
Membership No. 105546

\<)€/ UDIN ;. 23105546BGXMSD6006
Place: New Delhj

Date: May 29, 2023
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ANNEXURE A" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to consoclidated financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 ("the Act")

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the
Company as of and for the year ended March 31, 2023, we have audited the internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements of Fleur Hotels
Private Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Parent”) and its subsidiary companies,
which are companies incorporated in India, as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Parent and its subsidiary companies , which are
companies incorperated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements based on the internal
control with reference to consclidated financial statements criteria established by the
respective Companies considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI)”. These responsibilities include
the design, implementaticn and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderty and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets,
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required
under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility Is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference
to consolidated financial statements of the Parent and its subsidiary companies , which are
companies incorporated in India, based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (the “*Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects. ‘

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financiai controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls with reference to consclidated financial statements, assessing the rig
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effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by
the other auditors of the subsidiary companles, which are companies incorporated in India,
in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls with
reference to consolidated financial statements of the Parent and its subsidiary companies
, which are companies incorporated in India.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statements
is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control with
reference to consolidated financial statements includes those policies and procedures that

- (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effact on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements, including the paossibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due te error or fraud may occur
-and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls
with reference to consclidated financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk
that the internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statements may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compllance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us and based on the consideration of the reports of the other auditers referred to in the
Other Matters paragraph below, the Parent and its subsidiary companies which are
companies incorporated in India, have, in all material respects, an adequate internal
financial controls with reference to consglidated financial statements and such internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements were operatlng
effectively as at March 31, 2023 based on the crlterla for internal ﬂnanC|aI control

Chartered Accountants of India,
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Other Matters

Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3){i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements insofar as it relates to 5 subsidiary companies, which are companies
incorporated in India, is based solely on the corresponding reports of the auditors of such
companies incorporated in India.

Qur opinion is not modified in respect of the above matters.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.117366W/W-100018

Rajesh Kumar Agarwal
Partner

Membership No. 105546

UDIN : 23105546BGXMSD6006

)é)/ Place: New Delhi

Date: May 29, 2023
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Fleur Hotels Pivate Limited
CIN; USS101DL2003PTC207912
Consolidated Balance Sheet a8 at March 31, 2023,

Note No. As at Agat
Mareb 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Rs in Inkhs Rs in lakhs
ASSETS
Non-current assels .
() Property, plant and equipment 3 2,04,648.82 2,09,882,95
(b) Capital work-in-progress 4 48,818.61 30,439.94
" (c) Intangible assets 5.1 127.02 11333
(d) Intangible assets under development 52 277.53 22791
. (2) Goodwill on consolidation 51 25,054.35 25,054.35
(f} Right-cf-use asset 6 28,655.18 30,687.78
(z) Financial assets 7
(i) [nvestments 41 0.41
(ii) Other non-current financial assets - 6,420.63 5,866.60
(g) Deferred tax assets (nef} 16 293.55 -
" (L) Non-current tax assets (net) 8.1 1,084.68 975,30
(i} Other non-cusrent assets 82 1,511.59 666.26
3,16,892.37 3,03,914.83
Current asseis
{a} Inventorias § T07.67 549.50
{b) Financial assets 1¢
(i) Trade receivables 3,142.36 1,492.08
(i) Cash and Cash equivalents 1,337.65 3,600.41
(iif) Bank balances other than (ii) above 379.68 -
(iv) Gther current-financial assets 870,87 -717.52
{c} Other cuirent assets 11 1,877.45 1,252.41
%,315.68 7,612.32
Total Assets 3,25,208.08 3,11,527.15
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity share capital 12(a) 9,245.52 0,245.52
(b) Instruments entirely equity in natuse 12(b} 537.63 537.63
{c} Other Equity 13 1,38,321,01 1,32,508.90
Tatal Equity 1,48,104.16 1,42,292.05
Linbilities
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial lisbilities .
{i) Borrowings 14 1,17,594.60 1,19,497.45
{li) Lease liakilities 17 28,140.38 28,035.82
(iliy Other financiat liabilities 14 §23.12 731.01°
(b) Provisicns 15 69.15 98.98
(e) Deferred tax liabilities {net) 16 35823 . 200.53
(d) Other non-current linbilitics 18 1,695.70 1,837.01
1,48,681.18 1,50,400.80
Current liabifities
(a) Financial liabilities
{i) Borrowings 19 13,678.08 8,504.26
{ii) Lease Liability 17 247,71 157.88
{iiiy Trade payables 19
- total outstanding dues of miero enterprises and small enterprises 924.85 385.60
- totul outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 6,539.3% 5,258.22
enterprises
(i¥) Other finaneial Labilities 19 522147 1,651.64
(b) Other ourrent liabilltics 20 147527 1,112.80
(c) Provisions 15 335,94 1,763.90
2842211 18,834.30
‘Fota) Liabilities ! 1,77,103.8% 1,69,235.10
Total Equity and Liabilities 3,25,208.05 3,11,527.15
The accompanylng notes are an integral part uf the financial staten 1to 49

As per cur report of even date

Far and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Fleur ] iels Private Limited

. ﬁi’{ﬁgmah’ﬁ- Keswani
anaging Director
DIN-00002974

Inder Paf ra

Chief Finaneial Officer
Place : New Delhi Place : New Delhi
Dats ; May 29, 2023 Date : May 29, 2023

"

it BTN Rovamt

h
afly

Director
DIN-0708901

Sona m

Comflany Secyefary
Mem. no.- F7283
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Fleur Hotels Private Limited
CIN: U55101D12003PTC207812
Cnnsolida}_tﬁed statement pi‘ Profit and Loss for th_e year E_I?_Ié‘ell March 31, 1023,

T For the year ended Far the year ended
March 31, 2073 Mareh 31, 2022
Note No. Rs in Inkhs Rs in lakhs

Revenue from operations 2l 57,349.22 26,975,97
Qther [ncome 22 ']_'gg:'fﬁ 1_,631.55
Total Income _ 58,085.98 28,607.52
Expenses
Cost of food and beverages consumed 23 3,451.06 1,993.89
Employee benefits expense 24 8,565.11 5,329.61
Power and fus! 25(a) 4,396.61 2,765.81
Stamp duty expeses ) 25(b) 474,42 1,525,03
Other expenses ‘ 25(g) 15,136.41 8,223.55
Total Expenses ’ 32,027.61 15,837.89
Enrnings before finance cost, finance income, depreciation and amortization, , 26,058.37 8,765.63
and tax (EBITDA) (refer note 2,3(q))
Depreciation and amortization expenss 26 7,018.96 7.927.13
Finance costs 27 13,451.47 12,777.88
Finance income ) 28 " (294,58) (395.18)
Profit/(loss) before tax 5,882.52 {11,540.20)
Tax expense;
(1) Current tax (under MAT) 246,46 ’ 1.02
{23 Adjustment of tax relating to carlier periods 1,76 7.78
(3) Doferred tax (including MAT credit) . (171.71) (175.27)
Profit/{Loss) for the year 5,806.01 (11,373.73)
Other comprehensive loss
(i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of defined benefit plans 6.68 3721
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (0.58) . -

' 6.10 37.21
Total Comprebensive income/(loss) for the year 581211 (11,336,52)
Profit/(loss) for the year 5,806.01 (11,373.73)
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent 5,806.01 (11,373.73)
Non-conirotling interests - -
Total comprehensive income/{loss) for the yoar ' 5,'812.1] {11,336.52)
Attributable to: ' ‘
Equity halders of the parent 5,812.11 (1533632
Nonecontrolling interests ) - -
Earning/(loss) pev equity share
(1) Basic . 29 5.93 (11,63
(2) Diluted 29 5.93 {11.63)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements, ' 1o 49
As per our report of even date

Yor Detoitte Haskins & Sells LLP

- For and on belalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered fcol ’ Fleur Hotels Private Limited

\ ilaliined=
patamyail G. Keswani

.

T Aditya Madhav Keswani

Rajesl
Partner Managing Director Direcier
%V DIN-00002574 DIN-OTZOSDgl
Indérf’ﬁl’%——_‘ Snna]@chmda
Chief Financial Officer Company Sooretary
Mem. no, F7283
Plage ; New Delhi Place : New Delhi
Dute : May 29,2023 - Date : May 25, 2023
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Fleur Hotels Private Limited
CIN: T55101DL20B3PTC207912
Consolidated staternent of Changes in Equity as at March 31, 2023

A Equity Share Capital : .

As per our report of even date

Place : New Delhi
Date : May 29, 2023
-

For and on ke

Manapg Director
DIN-00802974

Sonali ¥fanchanda .
Lompany Secretary
Merm, no.- F7Z83

Place : Wew Delhi
Date : May 29, 2023

> o uret
Araniall G. Keswani

alf of the Board of Directors of

“

DIN-GF2GR901

Inder Pad Batra .
Chief Financial Qfhcer

Eouity shares of INR 10 each issued, subscribed and fully Na. of shares Amomnt .
paid Rs in lakhs
At April 1, 2021 B82B97.692 B28%.77
Issued durmng the year 5.57.461 955.75
As at Mareh 31, 2022 , 9.24,55.153 924552 .
Tesued during the year - =
As at March 31, 2023 9,24,55.153 3.245.52
E. C Ay Convertible Prefe Shares its entively eguity it nature)
Preference shares of Rs. 10 cach issucd, subseribed and No. of shares Amgunt
fully paid . (Rs in Inkhs)
As at April 1, 2021 53.76.340 53763
" Tssue of share capital - -
As at March 31, 2022 53.76.349 53763 ’ -
Tssue of share capflal - -
As 2t March 31, 2023 53.76.340 35763
B. Other Equity
For the year ended March 31, 2023
R in ok
Reserves and Surplus - Ttems of OCT Other Equity
Other component of | Securities Preminm Capital Rescrve Equity Compencné- Surplus in the Remeasnrement gains
Edquity Preference Share | Statemcent of Profit and|  {losses) on defined
Loss benefit plans and’
income tax effect
Balaace as at April 1, 2021 95575 1,65,532.11 (710.65) 83.58 (21,03527) {31.35) 1,44,801.17
Loss for the year - - - - (11,373.73) - (11373.73)
Tssue of share capital (955.75) - - - - (935.75)
Qther cormprehensive loss for the year - - - - - 37.21 - 3721
Balance as at Mareh 31, 2022 - 1,65,539.11 £710.65) 83.58 (32,409.00) 5.86 1,32,508.50
Profil for the year - - - - 5,806.01 - 580601
Other comprehensive loss for the year - - - - 6.10 6.10
Balznee as at March 31, 2023 - 1,65,539.11 (710.65) B3.58 26.602.99)) 11.96 1.38.321.01
*Refer note 15
The arcompanying motes are an integral part of the financiai statements. ito49

sraln
W
Director




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
CIN: US5101DL2603PTC207912 _
Consolidated statement of cash flow for the year ended March 31, 2023

For the vear ended For the year ended
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
(Rs in lakhs} (Rs in lakhs)

A, Cash flow from operating activities . '
Profit/(T)oss before tax 5,882.52 {11,540,20)
Non-cash adjustments to recencile profit before tax to net cash flows: ’
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 7,018.96 7,927.13
Waiver of rent - (433.70)
Finance income (Ingluding fiir value change in financial instruments) (294.58) (356.63)
Finance costs (including fair value change in financial instruments) 13,121.16 12,6167

. Provision for stamp duty - 1,525.03
Gain on Terminatior of contract - (323.67)
Advances written off - AR
Provigion for gratuity 33.05 14.96
Provision for leave encashment 3.74 (13.70)
Excess provision/ credit balances written back (134.51) T -
Provision for litigation - - 13.10
Net gain on sale of property, plant & equipment (9.30} (0.53)
Net gain on sale of current investments - (0.01)
Operating profit before working capital changes: 25,621.05 9,435.63
Movements in working capital: :
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables ) (1,651.56) 494,55
(Increase)/decrease in loans and advances and other current assets (1,350,52) 624.97
Increase in inventories (158.17) (66.21)
Increase/(Decrease) in liabilities and provisions 582.40 (2,358.91)
Cash Generated from Operations 23,043.20 §,130.03
Dirget taxes paid (net of refunds) {322.33) 231.22
Net cash flow from operating activities (A) 22,720.87 8,361.25
Cash flows used in investing activities ) }
Purchase of property, plant & equipment including CWIP, capital advances and capital creditors (14,746.74) (8,556.95)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant & eguipment 11.41 (0.53)
Proceeds from sale of current investment(net) - 0.01
Other Bank balances ' (439.35) 1,368.50
Interest received : 318.29 356,63
Net Cash flow used in investing activities (B (14,856.39) {6,832.34)
Cash flows from finaneing activities
Payment of Lease liability ' (2,411.53) (2,596.52)
Proceeds from long term borrowings(Net) 10,830.43 6,817.57
Repayment of long term borrowings (8,363.89) -
Repayment of short term borrowings "804.43 (641.26)
Interest paid : (10,986.68) (10,122.24)
Net Cash flow (used in)/from financing activities (C) {10,127.24) {6,542.45)

(This space has been intentionally left blank)



Fleur Hotels Private Limited
CIN: Us5101DL.2003PTC207912
Consolidated statement of cash flow for the year ended March 31, 2023

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
. (Rs in lakhs) (Rs in lakhs)

Net inerease in cash and eash equivalents (A + B + C) . ‘ (2,262.76) i {5,013.55)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 3,600.41 8,613.96
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year ] . ) 1,337.65 . 3,60041 '
Components of cash and cash equivalents (refer note 10)
Cash on Hand . ' 38.54 29.85
Balances with Scheduled Banks in :

- Current accounts 1,299.11 1,860,356

- Deposits with original maturity of less than three months . - 1,610,000
Total cash and cash equivalents 1,337.65 3,600.41

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. . 1 to 49

As per our report of even date

For Delojtte Hasking & Sells LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Fleur Hotels Private Limited

Dovase - oo
Ratanjali G, Keswani a Madhav Keswani

Rajesh Kumar 2

Partner Managing Director Director
DIN-00002974 DIN-07208901
Sonali M{lﬁda ~ Inder Pal Baira
Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer

Mem. no.- F7283"

Place : New Delhi Place : New Dethi
Date : May 29, 2023 ‘ Date : May 29, 2023
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Fleur Hotels Private lelted
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the yvear ended March 31, 12023

1.

2.1

2.2

_ \2‘@5! "’t&hgD holdings of the other voting rights holders

Corporate Information

Fleur Hotels Private Limited (the Company) and its subsidiaries (colléctively, the Group) is 4
private company domiciled in India and is incorporated under the provisions of the Companies
Act applicable in India. The registered office of the company is located at Asset No. 6,
Aerocity Hospitality District, New Delhi-110037.

The Company, its subsidiaries and limited liability partnership (together referred as “The
Group™) intend to carry out business of developing, owning, acquiring, renovating and
promoting hotels, motels, resorts, restaurants, etc. under the brand name of Lemon Tree Hotel,
Lemon Tree Premier, Red Fox Hotel, Aurika, Keys Lite, Keys Prima and Keys Select.
The consolidated financial statements are approved for issue by the Board of directors on May
29, 2023.

Basis of preparation

Significant accounting policies

These financial stelx_tements are prepared in-accordance with Indian Accounting Standard (Ind
AR), and the provisions of the Companies Act ,2013 {'the Act') (to the extent notified) The

Ind AS are prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule3 of the Companies (Indian

Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and relevant amendment roles issued thereafter.

The consolidated ﬁnanmal statements have been prepared on a going concern basis using
-historical cost convention and on an accrual method of accounting,- except for certain
financial assets and liabilities which are measured at fair value/ amortised cost (refer note 35).

Accounting policies have been consistently applied.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) and all values are
rounded to the nearest lakhs, expect where otherwise 1ndlcated

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company its
subsidiaries and limited liability partnership (together referred as “The Group™) as at 31
March 2023, Specifically, the Group controls an investee if and only if the Group has:

e Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the
relevant activities of the investee) -

e Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and

o The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its return

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. To support .
this presumption and when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights
of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether
it has power over an investee, including:

e The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee

e Rights arising from other contractual arrangements

‘¢ The Group’s voting nghts and potential voting rights

¢ size of the group’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dlspersmn of

o




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances
indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation
of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated financial
statements from the date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like
transactions and other events in similar circumstances. If a member of the group uses
accounting policies other than those adopted in the consolidated financial statements for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances, appropriate adjustments are made fo that
group member’s financial statements in preparing the consolidated financial statements to
ensure conformity with the group’s accounting policies.

The financial statements of all entities used for the purpose of conselidation are drawn up to
same reporting date as that of the parent company, i.e., year ended on 31 March.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group include subsidiaries and Limited llablhty
partnership listed in the table below:

Subsidiaries/LLP under Direct Control

Principal ‘Country of % of equity interest
S. No. | Name of the Company Activities Incg‘-:noﬁ t(i}()n March March
p 31,2023 | 31,2022
1. | Celsia Hotels Private Hotel _ India 100% 100%
Limited Business
2. | Inovoa Hotels & Resorts Hotel India 100% 100%
Limited Business )
3. | IORA Hotels Private Hotel India 100% 100%
Limited Business ‘
4. | Ophrys Hotels Private Hotel India 100% 100%
Limited Business
5. | Hyacinth Hotels Private Hotel India 100% 100%
Limited Business
6. | Bandhav Resorts Private Hotel India 100% 100%
Limited . Business
7. | Mezereon Hotels LLP Hotel India 99.99% | 99.99%
‘Business ‘ :
8. | Berggruen Hotels Private Hote] India 100.00% | 100.00%
Limited _ Business .

Consolidation proéédure:

Combine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the
parent with those of its subsidiaries. For this purpose, income and expenses of the subsidiary
are based on the amounts of the assets and liabilities recognized in the consolidated financial
statements at the acquisition date.

TE{ s
Ew

- Offset (ehmmate) the carrymg amount of the pa:rent $ mvestment in each sub51d1ary and the
-; :‘ ‘ | | | { @
; , _ 1




" Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to.consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

2.3

()

Eliminate in full intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between entities of the group (profits or losses resulting from
intragroup transactions that are recognised in assets, such as inventory and fixed assets, are
eliminated in full). Intragroup losses may indicate an impairment that requires recognition in
the consolidated financial statements, Ind AS12 Income Taxes applies to temporary
differences that arise from the elimination of profits and losses resulting from intragroup
transactions.

* Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed to the
‘equity holders of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this

results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments
are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line
with the Group’s accounting policies. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on congolidation. ‘

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary (including deemed acquisition/ deemed
disposal); without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction. If the Group
loses control over a subsidiary, it

Derecognises the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary
Derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests
Derecognises the camulative translation differences recorded in equity
Recognises the fair value of the consideration received

Recognises the fair value of any investment retained

Recognises any surplus or deficit in profit or loss .

or loss or retained earnings, as appropriate, as would be required if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

Summary of significant accounting policies
Business combinations and goedwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an
acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred measured at
acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree. For
each business combination, the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests
in the acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’sidentifiable net
assets. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred. '

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are

recognised at their acquisition date fair values. For this purpose, the liabilities assumed.

include contingent liabilities representing present obligation and they are measured at their
acquisition fair values irrespective of the fact that outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits is not probable. However, the following assets and liabilities acquired in a business
combination are measured at the basis indicated below:

o Deferred tax assets or liabilities, and the assets or liabilities related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured in accordance with Ind AS 12 Income Tax and
Ind AS 19 Employee Benefits respectively. _

o Liabilities or equity instruments related to share based payment arrangements of the

are-based payment arrangements of the acquiree are measured in accordance with I

acquiree or share — based payments arrangements of the Group entered into to replazes?}

102 Share-based Payments at the acquisition date. LT

Reclassifies the parent’s share of components previously recognised in OCI to profit -

“RELS
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Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements-for the year ended March 31, 2023

s Assets (or disposal Groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with Ind AS
105 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in
accordance with that standard. )

o Reacquired rights are measured at a value determined on the basis of the remaining
contractual term of the related contract. Such valuation does not consider potential renewal
of the reacquired right. ' |

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and Liabilities assumed
for appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms,
economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree.

If the business combination is achiéved-in stages, any previously held equity interest is re-
measured at its acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit
or loss or OCI, as appropriate.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognised at fair value at

the acquisition date. At the end of subsequent reporting periods, such contingent liabilities are

measured at the higher of the amount that would be recognised in accordance with Ind AS 37

and the amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisationrecognised in accordance
~ with Ind AS 18 Revenue.

Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial instrument and
within the scope of Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, is measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss. If the contingent consideration is not within the
scope of Ind AS 109, it is measured in accordance with the appropriate Ind AS. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not re-measured at subsequent reporting dates and
subsequent its settlement is accounted for within equity. ' :

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration
transferred and the amount recognised for non-controlling interests, and any previous interest
held, over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the fair value of the
net assets acquired is in excess of the aggregate consideration transferred, the Group re-
assesses whether it has correctly identified all of the assets acquired and all of the Liabilities
assumed and reviews the procedures used to measure the amounts to be recognised at the
acquisition date. If the reassessment still results in an excess of the fair value of net assets
acquired over the aggregate consideration transferred, then the gain is recognised in OCI and
accumulated in equity as capital reserve. However, if there is no clear evidence of bargain
purchase, the entity recognises the gain directly in equity as capital reserve, without routing
the same through OCI. :

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment

losses. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is,
from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units that are
expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of
the acquiree arc assigned to those units.

A cash generating vnit fo which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually, or more frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the
-recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to
the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the carrying amount of each
in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in profit or loss. A :ﬁg&«%
ltment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.




- Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(b)

(©

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the disposed operation is included in the
carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill
disposed in these circumstances is measured based on the relative values of the disposed
operation and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting
period in which the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the items
for which the accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted through
goodwill during the measurement period, or additional assets or liabilifies are recognised, to
reflect new information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition
date that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognized at that date. These
adjustments are called as measurement petiod adjustments. The measurement period does not
exceed one year from the acquisition date. :

Current versus non-current classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current
classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:

Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

Held primarily for the purpose of trading

Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability
for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

It is expected to be seftled in normal operating cycle

It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

There is no unconditional right to defer the settiement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period

. The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their

realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Group has identified twelve months as 1ts
operating cycle.

Foreign currencies

'Functional and presentation currency

' The Company’s financial statements are presented in INR, which is also the Company’s

functional currency. Presentation currency is the currency in which the company’s financial
statements are presented. Functional currency is the currency of the primary economic
environment in which an entity operates and is normally the currency in which the entity
imarily generates and expends cash. All the financial information presented in Indian
\ipees (INR) has been rounded to the nearest of lakhs rupees, except where otherwise statedf’

z/""‘f'_
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Fleur Hotels Private Limited :
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(d)

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Group’s entities at their
respective functional currency spot rates at the date the transaction first cualifies for
recognition. However, for practical reasons, the' Group uses an average rate if the average
approximates the actual rate at the date of the fransaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are ftranslated at the
functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in
profit or loss

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date

 when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary

items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the
change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or
loss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or proﬁt or loss,
respectlvely)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance
sheet date except to certain instruments which are measured at Amortized cost/ historic cost.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market parficipants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either:
* In the principal market for the asset or hablhty, or
e In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
Hability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market

partlc1pants would use when pricing the asset or lability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling
it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation technigues that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable

inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated

* financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,

based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

S



Fleur Hotels Private Limited _ :
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(e)

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2 — Valuanon techmques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

Level 3 — Valuation techmques for which the lowest level 111put that is significant to the
fair value measurement is unobsetrvable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated financial statements on a
recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The Group determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement,
such as derivative instruments and unquoted financial assets measured at fair value. External -
valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets and liabilities. The managerment selects
external valuer on various criteria such as market knowledge, reputation, independence and.
whether professional standards are maintained by valuer. The management decides, after :
discussions with the Company’s external valuers, which valvation techmques and inputs to
use for each case. :

At each reporting date, the management analyses the movéments in the values of assets and
liabilities which are required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Group’s accounting
policies. For this analysis, the management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest
valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and other
relevant documents. '

The management, in conjunction with the Company’s external valuers, also compares the
change in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external sources to determine
whether the change is reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the
level of the fair value hierarchy.

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value, Other fair value related disclosures are
given in the relevant notes.

e Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions (note 30)
¢ Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy (note 35)
¢ Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost) (note 35)

Revenue recognition

The Group apply Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” which establishes a
comprehensive framework to depict timing and amount of revenue to be recognised.

In arrangements for room revenue and related services, the Group has applied the guidance in
Ind AS 115 for recognition of Revenue from contract with customer, by applying the revenue
recognition criteria for each distinct performance obligation. The arrangements with
customers generally meet the criteria for considering room revenue and related services as
distinct performance obligations. For allocating the transaction price, the Group has measured
the revenue in respect of each performance obligation of a confract at its relative standalone
selhng price. The price that is regulally charged for an item when sold separately is the best
dence of its standalone selling price.




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31 2023

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Group and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being
made. Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured at the amount of
transaction price (net of variable consideration) allocated to that performance obligation. The
transaction price of goods sold and services rendered is net of variable consideration on
account of various discounts and schemes offered by the Company as part of the contract. The
Group assesses its revenue arrangements against specific criteria to determine if it is acting as
principal or agent. The Group has concluded that it is acting as a principal in all of its revenue
arrangements. The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before
revenue is recognized. :

Value added tax (VAT)/Goods & Service Tax(GST) is not received by the Group on its own
account. Rather, it is tax collected on value added to the commodity by the seller on behalf of
the government. Accordingly, it is excluded from revenue., -

Rooms, Restaurant, Bangquets and Other Services

Income from guest accommodation is recognized on a day to day basis after the guest checks
into the Hotels and are stated net of allowances. Incomes from other services are recognized
as and when services are rendered. Sales are stated exclusive of Value Added Taxes (VAT),
Goods and Service Tax(GST) and Luxury Tax. Difference of revenue over the billed as at the
year-end is carried in financial statement as unbilled revenue separately.

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the signjﬁéant risks and rewards of
ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer, sale of food and beverage are recognized at
the points of serving these items to the guests. Sales are stated exclusive of VAT/GST.

Interest income

For all financial instruments measured at amortized cost,interest income is recorded using the
effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shortet period,
where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or liability. Interest
income is included in finance income in the income statement.

Dividends

Revenue is recognized when the Group’s right to recetve the payment is established, which is
generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

Management Fee

Revenue from the management services comprises fixed and variable income. An entity
recognizes revenue relating to the fixed income over time by measuring the progress towards
complete satisfaction of the performance obligation. In respect of variable income, revenue is
recognized is on an accrual basis in accordance with the terms of the relevant agreement.
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Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

®)

Taxes

Taxes comprises current tax and deferred tax

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from

‘profit before tax’ as reported in the consolidated statement of profit and loss because of items
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never

. taxable or deductible. The Group’s current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been

enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are
those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where the
Group operates and generates taxable income.

Current tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in
correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where
appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is proifided using the balance sheet approach method on temporary differences
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial

reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

¢ When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

e In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, and
associates, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward
of unused tax credits (including MAT credit) and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss

In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
and associates, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that
the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
ilable against which the temporary differences can be utilised
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The carrying amount of deferred tax assets (including MAT credit available) is reviewed at
each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to
the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax asscts and labilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in
correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCT or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to
set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and 'the deferred taxes relate to the same
taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Tax benefits acquired as part of a business combination, but not satisfying the criteria for
separate recognition at that date, are recognised subsequently if new information about facts -
and circumstances change. Acquired deferred tax benefits recognised within the measurement
period reduce goodwill related to that acquisition if they result from new information obtained
about facts and circumstances existing at the acquisition date.

If the carrying amount of goodwill is zero, any remaining deferred tax benefits are recognised
in OCV/ capital reserve depending on the principle explained for bargain purchase gains. All
other acquired tax benefits realised are recognised in profit or Joss.

Value added taxes/GST paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of value added taxes/GST paid, except;

e When the tax incurred on a purchase of asscts or services is not recoverable from the
taxation authority, in which case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acqulsltlon
of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable -

e When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included

{g) Property, plant and equipment(PPE)

On transition to IND-AS, the Group has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its
property plant and equipment recognised as at April 1, 2015, measured as per the previous
GAAP, and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of such property plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the
plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition
criteria are met. Such properties are classified to the appropriate categories of property, plant
and equipment when completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on
the same basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are ready for their
intended use. Freehold land is not depreciated. Capital work in progress is stated at cost

. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the
Gloup depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives, Likewise, when a
ajor inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying .amount of the plant and
guipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repa1yﬂ{%
tenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. £§°
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The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is
included in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met.

Depreciation on fixed assets is provided as per schedule II of Companies Act, 2013 on
Straight Line Method over its economic useful life of PPE as follows:

Property, plant and equipment Useful life considered
(SLM)

Plant & Machinery 15 Years
Building 60 Years/leased remaining life
Electrical installations and fittings 10 Years

Office Equipments ' 5 Years

Furnijture and Fixtures : 8 Years
Crockery, cutlery and soft furnishings : 3 Years
Commercial Vehicles 6 Years

Private Vehicles : 8 Years
Computers, ' 3 Years

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is
derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the
income statement wheri the asset is derecognized.

The residual values, useful lives and methods, of depreciation of property, plant and
equipment are reviewed at each financial year end, and adjusted prospectively if appropriate.

(hy  Intangible assets

On transition to IND AS, the Group has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its
Intangible assets recognised as at April 1, 2015, measured as per the previous GAAP, and use
that carrying value as the deemed cost of such Intangible asset.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recoguition at cost. The cost of
intangible assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the date of
acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated
intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and the related
expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as 3 years and the same shall be amortised on
Straight line basis over its useful life.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but are tested for impairment -
annually at year end cither individually or at the cash generating unit level. The assessment of
indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be
supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospcctwe
basis.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangibie asset are measured as the ———
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are \,‘\)TEL@
cognized in the income statement when the asset is derecogmzod
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(i) Borrowing costs
Borrowing cost includes interest expense as per Effective Interest Rate (EIR).

Borrowing costs directly atiributable fo the acquisition or construction of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are capitalised
as part of the cost of the asset until such time that the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use. Where funds are borrowed specifically to finance a project, the amount
capitalised represents the actual borrowing costs incurred. Where surplus funds areavailable
out of money borrowed specifically to financea project, the income generated from such
currentinvestments is deducted from the total capitalizedborrowing cost. Where the funds
used to finance aproject form part of general borrowings, the amount capitalised is calculated
using a weighted average ofrates applicable to relevant general borrowings of thecompany
during the vear. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended and charged to profit and loss
duringthe extended periods when the active development onthe qualifying assets is
interrupted.

EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the
expected life of the financial liability or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the amortised
cost of a financial liability after considering all the confractual terms of the financial
instrument.

() Leases

The Group assesses that the contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To
assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Group
assesses whether: '

(1) The contract involves the use of an identified asset,

(2) The Group has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the identified
asset, and

(3) The Group has the right to direct the use of the identified asset.

Group as a lessee

The Group recognizes right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset for
the lease term at the lease commencement date. The cost of the right-of-use asset measured at
inception shall comprise of the amount: of the initial measurement of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date plus any initial
direct costs incurred. The right-of-usc asseis is -subsequently measured at cost less any
accumulated depreciation, accumulated impairment losses, if any and adjusted for any
remeasurement of the lease liability. The right-of-use asset is depreciated from the
commencement date over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset.
Right-of-use assets are tested for impairment whenever there is any indication that their
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. Impairment loss, if any, is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss. '

The Group measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments over. the
lease term. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if
that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company
uses incremental borrowing rate. For leases with reasonably similar characteristics, the
Company adopts the incremental borrowing rate for the entire portfolio of leases as-a whole., &
The lease payments shall include fixed payments, variable lease payments, exercise price of a/Q" —
purchase option and payments of penalties for terminating the lease. The lease liability is 1" ¥
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liability, reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made and remeasuring the
carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease modifications or to reflect revised in-
substance fixed lease payments,

The Company recognises the amount of the re-measurement of lease liability as an adJustment
to the right-of-use asset. Where the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced to
zero and there is a further reduction in the measurement of the lease liability, the Company
recognizes any remaining amount of the re-measurement in statement of profit and loss.

The Company has elected not to apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 to leases for which the
underlying asset is of low value. The lease payments associated with these low value leases
are recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term..

-Group as a lessor

Leases where the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases. Lease rentals under operating
leases are recognized as income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

(k) Inventories

Stock of food & beverages, stores and operating supplies are valued at lower of cost and net
realisable Value. Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on a first in first out
basis.Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary coutse of business less
estimated cost of completlon and estimated costs necessary to make sale.

{1) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required,
the Group estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair valueless costs of disposal and its
value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset
does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or
Group of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining net selling price, recent market
transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such transactions can be identified, an
appropriate valuation model is used.These calculations are corroborated by valuation
multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other avallablc fair value
indicators, :

The Group bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations,
which are prepared separately for each of the Group’s CGUs to which the individual assets
are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years.
For longer periods, a long-ferm growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash
flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered by the
most recent budgets/forecasts, the Group extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget
using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be
justified. In any case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for
e products, industries, or country in which the entity operates, or for the market in which th;

1N asiskis used.
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Impairment losses, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the statement of
profit and loss.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or
have decreased. If such indication exists, the Group estimates the asset’s or CGU’s
recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has
been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the
last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the
asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or loss unless the asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase,

(m) Provisions
General

~ Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligatton (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of
the obligation, The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and
loss net of any reimbursement,

" The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current
pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a
finance cost.

Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current
best estimate. If it is no longer probable that an outflow of resources would be required to
settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.

Contingent Assets/ Liabilities

Contingent assets are not recognised. However, when realisation of income is virtually
certain, then the related asset is no longer a contingent asset, and is recognised as an asset.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in notes to accounts when there is a possible obligation
arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the oceurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount
cannot be made.

Contingent liabilities recognised in a business combination

A contingent liability recognised in a business combination is initially measured at its fan‘ A
value. Subsequently, it is measured at the hlgher of the amount that would be recognised iry _Q'
accordance with the requirements for provisions above or the amount initially recognised less, - h
shen appropriate, cumulative amortization recognised in accordance with the requirements
%r_venue recognition. : .
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(n) Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The group
has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The group
recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when an
employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service
received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit
payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already
paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before
the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment
will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

Retirement benefit in the form of gratuity is a defined benefit scheme. Gratuity liability of

- employees is accounted for on the basis of actuarial valuation on projected unit credit method
at the close of the year. Company’s contribution made to Life Insurance Corporation is
expensed off at the time of payment of premium.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling,
excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return
on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability),
are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to -
retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:
e The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
s The date that the Group recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or
asset. The Group recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an
expense in the consclidated statement of profit and loss:
e Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on
curtailments and non-routine settlements; and
¢ Net interest expense or income

Retirement benefits in the form of Superannuation Fund is a defined contribution scheme and
the contributions are charged to the statement of profit and loss of the year when the
contributions to the respective funds are due. There are no other obligations other than the
contribution payable to the respective trusts

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

A liability is iecogﬁised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, ;
annual leave and sick leave in the period the related service is rendered at the undiscounted
amouut of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service.

Liabilities recognised in respe’et of short-term employee benefits are measured at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefits are measured at the
present value of the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made by the Group in
respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date.
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(0)

The Group treats leaves expected to be carried forward for measurement purposes. Such
compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected
unit credit method at the year-end. Remeasurement gains/losses are immediately taken to the
statement of profit and loss and are not deferred. The Group presents the entire leave as a
current liability in the balance sheet, since it does not have an unconditional right to defer its
settlement for 12 months after the reporting date. Where Group has the unconditional legal
and contractual right to defer the settlement for a peuod beyond 12 months, the same is
presented as non-current liability.

Financial insétruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. :

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not

* recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the

acquisition of the financial asset. However, trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component are measured at transaction price. Purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in
the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequenr measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, ﬁnanc1a1 assets are classified in following

categories:

* Debt instruments at amort1sed cost

¢ Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value thlough profit or loss
(FVTPL)

¢ Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Debt instruments ar amovtised cost
A debt instrument is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and , .

b) . Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Group. After initial measurement, such financial
assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (FIR)
method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is
included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment arc
recognised in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables,
loans to subsidiaries etc. For more information on receivables, refer to Note 10,
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Debt instrument at FVIPL

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments.

In addition, the Group may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets
amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if
doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as
‘accounting mismatch’). The Group has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL.

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all
changes recognized in the P&L..

Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind-AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments
included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recogmzed in
the P&L..

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset ot part of a Group of similar
financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Group’s consolidated
balance sheet) when:

o The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
¢ The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party
under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially
~all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b} the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Group applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit
risk exposure:

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and arc measured at amortised cost e.g., loans,
debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance
b) Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOCI
* ¢) Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset.

The Group follows ‘simplified approach’ for recogmtlon of impairment loss allowance on
trade receivables.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Group to track changes in credit
risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each
reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Group
determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial
recognition. If credit risk has not iricreased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for f"\
impajrment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. A T@'{
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Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is. a portion of the lifetime ECL
which results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all
cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity is
required to consider: : _

» All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension,
call and similar options) over the expected life of the financial instrument. However,
in rare cases when the expected life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated
reliably, then the entity is required to use the remaining contractual term of the
financial instrument.

e Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are
integral to the contractual terms

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as
income/ expense in the statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under the
head ‘other expenses’ in the P&L. The balance sheet presentation for various financial
instruments is described below: ‘
¢ Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables and
lease receivables: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the
measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net
carrying amount. Uniil the asset meets write-off criteria, the Group does not reduce
impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.
¢ Debt instruments measured at FVTOCIL: There are no instruments measured at
EVTOCI.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement {

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial Labilities at fair value
through profit or loss, ldans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. ~

'All financial labilities aré recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and
borrowings and payables, net of direcily attributable transaction costs. '

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings
including bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement

The measureﬁlent of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss :

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for
trading. and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the
purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial
instruments entered into by the Group that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge -
Hationships as defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified a
5
§

heldNor trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.

e
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Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are
designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are
satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes
in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to
P&L. However, the Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss. within equity. All other
changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The
Group has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit and loss.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

This is the category most relevant to the Group. After initial recognition, interest-bearing
loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method.
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecogmsed as well
as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR: The EIR amortisation is included as
finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

This category generally applies to borrowings. For more information refer Note 14,
Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those contracts that require a payment
to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to
make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial
guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability
is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment
requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation.

If a financial guarantee is an integral elemenl of a debt instrument held by the entity, it should
not be accounted for separately. ‘

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new Hability. The difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities arc offset and the net amount is reported in the
consolidated balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and
settle the liahiliies simultaneously.”
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Notes to consolidated financial §tatements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(p)

Q)

(r)

(s)

()

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-
term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value. '

Measurement of EBITDA

The Group has elected to present earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortization
(EBITDA) as a separate line item on the face of the statement of profit and loss. The Group
measures EBITDA on the basis of profit/ (loss) from core business operations. In its
measurement, the Group does not include finance costs, finance income, depreciation and
amortization, exceptional items, if any and tax expense.

Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, where by profit before tax is adjusted for the
effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating
cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or
financing cash flows, The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the
Company are segregated. '

Common Controel business combinations

The Group accounts for business combinations involving entities or businesses under commeon.
control using the pooling of interest method. The assets and liabilities of the combining entities
are reflected at their carrying amounts. The identity of the reserves are preserved and appear in
the financial statements of the transferee in the same form in which they appeared in the
financial statements of the transferor. The difference, if any, between the amount recorded as
share capital issued plus any additional consideration in the form of cash or other assets and the
amount of share capital of the transferor is transferred to Capital Reserve Account and is
presented separately as Common Control Transactions Capital Reserve Account.

In terms of the scheme the amalgamation has been accounted for in accordance with the pooling
of Interest Method. As per said scheme, the financial information in the financial statements in
respect of prior period has been restated w.e.f the appointed date as if business combination
occurred from the beginning of the preceding period in the financial statements, irrespective of
the actual date of the combination.

Earnings Per Share (EPS)

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity
shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding
during the year.

Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of
the Company by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year plus
the weighted average number of Equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the
dilutive potential Equity shares into Equity shares.
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Fleur Hotels Private Limited

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

4. Capltal work-in-progress

As at Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
{Rs In lakhs) (Rs in lakhs)
Hotel at MIAL Aeroclty*#
Material 26,439.78 11,663.53
Professional charges 7,806.50 5,837.81
Borrowing cost 128.77 106.13
Lense rent 9.406.78 8,265.28
Salary, wages & bonus 863.08 678.88
Rates and taxcs 4,072.3% 3,882.67
Others 11,31 5.64
48,818.61 30,439.94
Particulars Amount
(Rs in lukhs)
Balance as at April 01, 2021 23,861.86
Additions during the year 6,578.08
Balance as at March 31, 2022 30,430.94
Additions during the vear 18,378.67
Balance as at March 31, 2023 4881861
CWIP Ageing schedule
As at March 31, 2023
(R bt Ferkhis)
Amount in CWIP for a period of Total
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
Projects in progress 18,378.67 6,575,33 5,419.45 18,445.16 48,818.61-
Toial 18,378.67 6,575.33 5,419.45 18,445.16 48,818.61
As at March 31, 2022 (s in lakhs)
Amount in CWIP for a period of Tatal
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More thian 3 years
Projects in progress 6,575.33 5,419.45 5,594.87 12,850.29 30,439.94
Total 6,373.33 5,419.45 5,594,87 12,850.29 30,439.94

* Project work is under progress with structure works compieted till first floor and block work under progress, Hotel is expected to be commissioned by 2023-24,

# Refer note 39(b)
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Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

5.1 Intangible Assets
Rs. in lakhs
Particulars
' Goodwill on
Software Total Consolidation
As at April 1, 2021 418.42 418.42 25,054.42
Additions 8.51 : 8.51 -
As at March 31, 2022 ) 426.93 426.93 25,054.42
Additions 59,19 59.19 -
As at March 31, 2023 486.13 486.12 25,054.42
Amortisation and impairment .
As at April 1, 2021 237.01 237,01 0.05
Armortisation - 76.61 76.61 0.01
As at March 31, 2022 313.61 313.61 0.05
Amortisation 45.50 45,50 0.00
As at March 31, 2023 359.12 359.12 0.06
Net Block
As at March 31, 2023 127.02 - 12702 25,054.35
As at March 31, 2022 113.33 113.33 25,054,335
Net book value As at Agat
: _ March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Intangible assets 127.02 113.33
Note:

a) The Intangible assets are valued at cost. The Group has not revalued these assets during the year. Also refer note 41.
5.2 Intangible assets under development

Meter substation work(Sector-60)
Particulars : Amount

(Rs in lakhs)
Balance as at April 01, 2621 -

Additions during the year | 227.91
Balance as at March 31, 2022 227.91
Additions during the year . 49.62
Balance as at March 31, 2023 277.53

Note: Intangible assets under development consists of cost incurred en development of enabling assets- 330K A substation which has
been subsequently capitalised as on April 18, 2023 :




Fleur Hotels Private Limited .
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
6. Right-of-use asset a '

Rs. in lakhs
Particulars Amount
Gross Carrying Amount (I)

At April 1, 2021 48,667.08
Additions
Disposal ' : 5,351.72
At March 31, 2022 ’ 43,315.36
Additiong -
Disposal -
As at March 31, 2023 o 43,315.36

Accumulated Depreciation (II)

At April 1, 2021 : 10,960.84
Deprem.ahon during the year (apportioned in P&L) 129961
Depreciation during the year (Capitlised during the

year) - : 921.95
Disposal 554.82
At March 31, 2022 : ; 12,6_27.58
Depreciation duting the year (apportioned in P&L) . 1.110.67
Depreciation during the year (Capitlised during the

year) _ 921.93
Disposal : -
As at March 31, 2023 14,660.18
IIL Net Carrying amount(I-1I)

As at Mareh 31, 2023 28,655.18
AtMarch 31, 2022 30,687.78.

Notes: :
a) The lease agreement for leasehold properties is registerd in the hame of the respective companies.
by Right-of-use assets are valued at cost.The Group has not revalued these assets during the year,
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Fleur Hotels Private Limited .
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

7 Financial assets . As at Asat
' March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Rsin lakhs - Rs in lakhg

(i) Investments
Investments at fair value through Profit & Loss
4,109 (Previous Year: 4,109) equity shares of SEP Energy Private
Limited of Rs,10 each fully paid. _ : ' 0.41 0.41

Total 0.41 0.41

Aggregate book value of quoted investments - .

Apggregate book value of unquoted investments 0.41 041
As at Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs

(ii) Other non-current financial assets

Unsecured, cmisidered good

Security deposits at amortised cost _ ' 6,111,05 5,550.42
Interest accrued on deposits with banks™ 77.74 : 144.00
Fixed deposits under lien* 694,10 T 634.44
Less Provision for doubtful assets (462.26) (462.26)
Total . _ ‘ 6,420.63 5,866.60

* Fixed deposits under lien and interest accrued on deposits includes deposits len marked with banks against guarantees issued in
favour of various Govetnment departments. :

(This space has heen intentionally left blank)




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

8.1

8.2

* Non-current tax assets (net}

Advance income tax {net of provision for taxation)

Total

Other non-current assets

Capitai Advances

Balance with statutory/ government authorities
Prepaid expenses

Reserve for straightlining of rent receivable
Total

Asat As at
March 31, 2023 March 31,.2022
Rs in lakhs Rs i lakhs
1,084.68 97530
1,084.68 975.30
As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
1,079.13 288.23
3572 59,53
1.96 5.17
394,78 313,33
1,511,59 666,20

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financizal statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

9 Inventories
(valued at lower of cost and net reakisable value, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
Food and beverages (excluding liquor and wine) ’ 122,88 101.44
Liguor and wine 114.19 97.55
Stores, cutlery, crogkery, linen, provisions and others (valued at cost) 470.60 350,51
Total ) ) 707.67 549.50

Refer footnote to Note 14 for inventories pledged.

(This speice has been intentionally left blank)
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Fleur Hotels Private Limited
WNotes to eonsolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

14 Financial asseis 7 As at . Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs -

(i) Trade receivables#*

Trade receivables

Unsecured, congidered good .- ' 3,142.36 1,492.08
Trade Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk 1,388,82 1,387.54
Less: Provision for expected credit loss (1,388.82) (1,387.54)
Total : 3,142,36 1,492.08
Trade receivables from non related parties 3,142,36 1,492.08
’ 3,142,36 1,492.08

No trade or other receivable are due from divectors or other officers of the Group either severally or jeintly with any other person. Nor any
trade or other receivable are due from firms or privaie compfmies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member,
The interest free credit period given to customers is upto 90 days.

(This space has been intentionally Ieft blank}
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Flenr Hotels Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended Mareh 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2023
Rs in lakhs

As at
March 31, 2022
Rs in lakhs

(ii) Cash and cash equivalents

. Balance with banks

On current & cash credit-accounts 1,299.11 1,960.56
Deposits with original maturity of 3 months or less - 1,610.00
Cashoon hand 38.54 25.85
Total 1,337.65 3,600.41
Reconciliation of Movements of liabilites to cash flows arising from financing activites:
As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Particulars Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
Balance as at beginning of the year-Borrowings and lease liabilites © 1,56,195.41 1,54,594.50
Movement due to payments {receivedymade 859.45 3,146.10
Movement due to non cash iransactions in lease liabilites and borrowings
~Addition
-Acemal of finance cost 2,605.91 3,010,12
-Adjustment of pretermination of leases - 4,555.31
Balance as at end of the yeer- Borrowings and lease liabilites 1,59,660.77 1,556,195 .41
Asat As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
. Rs in lakhs R in lakhs
(iii) Other Bank balances other than (i) above
Deposits with maturity more than 3 months but less than 12 months 379.68 -
379.68 -
Asat As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Rs in lakhs Rs in Jakhs
(iv) Other financial assets ’
Advances recoverable
- Binployee Advance 0.68 -
- Qthers 595,57 490,91
Securily deposits 46.64 41.55
Interest accrued on deposits with banks and others 117.98 18546
Total 870.87 717.92
Break up of current financial assets carried at amoriised cost
: ' Asat Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Rs in lakhs Ry in lakhs
Trads receivables 3,142.36 1,492.08
Cash and cash equivalents 1,337.65 3,600.41
Security deposits 46,64 41.55
Advances recoverable ' : 596.25 490,91
Interest acerued on deposits with bank; and others 227,98 185.46
5,350.88 5,810.41
11 Other gnrrent assefs Asat Asal
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Rs in lakhs Rs in Jakhs
Unbilled revenue 29.34 19,84
Bulance with statutory/ government authorities 1,226,16 788.76
Prepaid expenses 621.95 443,81
TFotal 1,877.45 1,252.41




Fleur Hotels Private Edmlted
Notes to consolidated finencis? statements far the yenr ended March 31, 2023

12(a} Equity share eapltal

Authorlsed Share Capital
(Equity shares al Rs 10 each)

Asat Aprll 1, 2021
Increase/{decrease) dutinp the year
As at March 31, 2022
Incrense/{decrease) during the year
As at March 31, 2023

Autitorised Preference Share Cupital

AsatApri 1, 2021
Incrense/{decrease) during the year
As nt March 31, 2022

. Increase/(decrease) duting the year
As nt March 31, 2023

Terms/rights attached e eguity shares

Equlty shares
No. of shares Rs in Inkhs
13,58,50,000 13,585.00
IJ‘Sﬂ,SU,‘il}ﬂ ISESSSM.(ID
13,58,50.000 13 SRS:OD

Preference sharcs
_(Face ¥ulue of Rs, 100 ench’

Preference shares
. (Fuce Value of Ry, 10 erch)

No. of shores Rs i akhy No. of sharos Rs in Inkhs
10,00,600 1,000.00 . 1,14,00,006 1,140.00
]D.Oﬁ,l;ﬂﬂ 1,000‘.00 1,14,00,(;(70 . I,140-.00
1000000 ],DDI]-.OD 1,14,00,000 ],140-.00

The company hos only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 10 per share, Ench holder of equity shares s entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liguidation of the comypany, the halders of equity
shares will be entilled 10 receive remaining nssels of the company, afier distribution of al] preferential amounts. The distrilution wilt be in proportion lo the nismber of equity sheres held by hie shereholders,

Tasued equlty cupltal

Equity shares of INR 14 each ssued, subseribed and fully pald

Asat April 1, 2021
Tssued during the year*
Anni March 31, 2022
Issved during ihe year
As nf Mareh 34, 2023

Ne. of shares Rs i Jukhs

8,2897,692 B,2689.77

93,357,461 95575
9,24,55,153 9,24552
9,245,153 9,246

*During the pmvluus'ycar, Compeny has fssued 95,57,461 shares on.non casll eonsideralion lo the shareholders of Begonin Hoiels Private Limited and Nightingale Holels Privale Lirnited pursuant to merger.

{a) Sharcs held by Holding company

Equity shares of Rs, 10 each fully palt up
Lemon Tree Hotels Limited

* {Db) Detnils vf sharehalders helding more than 5% shares in e company

Equity shures of Rs, 10 each fully palé up
Lemon. Tree Hotels Limited

APG Sirajegic Real Estate Paol N.Y
Dandelion Hotels Privale Limited

As af Asal
Mareh 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
No. of sharcs Rs in fukhs_ Mo. of sharss Rs in lakhs
4,94,54,240 4,949.42 4,04,94,240 4,942.42
Asnt Asal
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
No. of shares % beld No. of shares 4 hetd
4,94,94,240 53.53% 4,94,94,240 53.53%
3,78,91,385 41.06% 3,79,91,385 41,09%
49,69,528 5.38% 49,69,528 5.3%%

(£) Aggreprte number of beuus share issued, share kisued for consideration ather ehan ash and shares hought haek duying the perled of five years immediately preceding ¢he reporting dite

(i} Equily sharps allotied as fully paid, pursuani to amalgamations

32{b). Instrunents entirely equity in natere

Compulsorily Converlible Preference Shares capital of Rs. 10 sach fully paid®

Mureh'31, 2023 March 31, 2022
No. of sharcs ._Mo. of'shares

2,18,22,500 2,18,22,200

Asat April 1, 2021 537.63
Incrense/{decrease) during the year -
As at March 31, 2022 537.63
Increase/{decrease} during the year -
As at March 31, 2023 537.63
{a) Shares held by Holiding enmpany
Ayat AsAt
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
. Nu. vl shares Rs in lakhs Nu. of shares Rs in Jakhs
Compulsarily Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. 10 each fislly paid
Leman Tres Hotels Limited 22,00,000 220.00 - -
{b) Detalls of sharcholders helding morc than 5% shares In the Company
As at As AL
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Nime of the sharghnldor Nao. of sharcs %% held Nuo, of shures % held
Compulsarily Convertiblo Prefirence Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid
Leman Tree Hodels Limfted 22,00,000 40.92% - . -
ARG Stralegie Real Esiate Pool N.Y 31,76,340 52.08% 53,76,340 ! 100.00%

*Op Juno 22, 2020, Flelr Hotels Private Limited had made allotment of $3,76,340 Comgulsorily Convertible Preterence Stares (CCPS) oCRs, 10 each af  premium of Rs. 31550 per share 10 APG Strategic Real

Estate Pool N,V (first tranchis) which ware (o be converted inlo equity shates on or befory December 21,

fram APG Strelegic Real Estate Pool NV,

Fleur Hotels Privato Limited has exiended the conversion period 6T CCPB to June 30, 2023 as appraved in the Bxtroordinacy General Meeting (RGM) held on Decombir 21, 2023

2022, Duting the year the Holding Company (Leman Trge Hotels Limited) hes purchesed 22,00,000 CCPS

. T
%, o
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Fleur Hotels Private Eimited
Wotes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
13 Other equity

Securlties Premium Rs fn fakhs
As at April 1, 2021 1,65,539.11
Increase/(decrease) during the year -
As at March 31, 2022 1,65,539.11 -
Increase/(decreasd) during the vear -
As at March 31, 2023 1,65,539.11
Deficit in the Siatement of Profit and Loss Rs in lakhs
As at April 1, 2021 - (21,035.27)
Loss for the year {11,373.7%)
As at March 31, 2022 {32,409.00)
Profit for the year 5,806.01
As at March 31, 2023 (26,602.99)
Other comprelienstve income Rs in lakhs
As at April 1, 2021 (31.35)
Decrease during the year 37.21
As at March 31, 2022 5.86
Increase during the year 6.10
As at March 31, 2023 11.96
Other component of equity Rs in lakhs
As at April 1, 2021 955,75
Increase / {Dectease) during the year (955.75)
As at March 31, 2022 "
tncrease / {Decrease) during the vear -
As at March 31, 2023 : -
Cﬂpitul reserve Rs. in lakhs
As at April 1, 2021 (710.65)
Increase/(decrease) during the year -
As at March 31,2022 (710.65)
Increase/(decreasc) during the year -
As at March 31, 2023 - (710.65)
Preference Share Capital (cquify chmpnnent of redemable, non convertable preference
shares)Preference Share Capital-equity component Rs. in [akhs
As at April 1, 2021 83.58
Increasc/{decreasce) during the year .
As at March 31, 2022 §3.58
Inerease/(decrease) during the year -
As at March 31,2023 83,58
As pt Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
Other reserves
Securities Preminm i 1,65,539.11 1,65,53¢.11
Deficit in the Statement of Profit and Loss (26,602.99) {32,405.00)
Other comprehensive income 11.%6 ' 586
Preference Share Capital (equity cornponent of redemable, non convertable preference 83.58 83.58
shares) .
Capital reserve (710.65)’ (710,65)
Taotal 1,38,321.01 1,32,508.50

Seeuritics premium: Securities premium comprises premium received on issue of shares,

Deficit in the Statement of Profit and Loss: Surplus in the Statement ef Profit and Loss represents balances of profit and loss af each period/yéar end,

Other comprehensive income: Other comprehensive income represents accemulated balanges of Remeasurcment (losscs)/gains on defined benefit

plans,

Preference Share Capital (equity component of redemable, non convcrtab]é preference shares): represents component of equity of 5% reedemable
non pummulative Preference share Captial (transferred on merger of Meringue Hetels Private Limited).
Capital Reserve: Capital Reserve Account: Capital resreve account is recorded as difference between share capital issued and the amount of share -

capital of the transferor,
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Flear Hotels Private Limited
Notes to censolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

14 Financial Liabilities _ Asat Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31,2022

Rs in lakhs Rs ig Jakhg

(i) Non-current borrowings

Term Loans
Indian rupee loans from Banks (Secured)

Axis Bank Limited (Refer note 23 to 27 below) 34,560.79 37,566,72
Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited (Refer note 1 to 5 and & below) 8,113.29 11,866.07
Yes bank Limited (Refer note 10 io 18 below) 37,546.79 . 39,259.97
Indusind Bank Limited (Refer note 19 to 22 below) ' 10,299.77 8,300.60
Vehicle loans (Refer note 34 below) ' ) 7115 145.96
HDFC Bank Limited { Refer note 6 to 8 and 30 to 33 below) 15,402.31 10,769.96
Indian rupee loans from financial institutions

Adilya Birle Finance Limited (Refer note 28 & 28 below) 11,500.50 11,588.17
Total non-carrent borrowings . ’ . 1,17,594.60 1,19,497.45

Current borrewings

Term Loans

Current maturity of long term loans .

Axis Bark Limited (Refer note 23 to 27 below) . 3,015.96 858.16
Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited (Refer note 1 to 5 and 9 beiow) 732.41 902,33
Yes bank Limiled (Refer note 10 to 18 below) 3,879.68 3,013.17
Indusind Bank Limited (Refer note 19 to 22 below) ' 651,38 540.83
Vehicle loans {Refer note 34 below) ' : ©T79.09 84,19
HDFC Bank Limited ( Refer note 6 to 8 and 30 to 33 below) 1,409.55 -

. Total current horrowings . 9,768.07 5,398.68
Less; Amount clubbed under “Short Term Borrowings™{(vefer note 19(i)) (9,768.07) (5,398.68)

Net current borrowings . . - N
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Fleur Hotels Private Limited

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(i) Other financial liahilities

Security deposits

Total

Pravisions

Provision for gratuity
Current
MNon-current

Provision for leave benefits
Current
Mon-currsnt

Provision for litigations (Refer note 33(c))
Current
Non-current

Provision for stamp duty
Current
Non-current

Total current
Total non~current

As at Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Rs in lakhs Ry in lakhs
823,12 731.01
823.12 731401
Asat Asal
March 31, 2023 - March 31, 2022
Rs it lakhs R in lakhs
102.56 124,75
3341 25,77
69.15 98.98
Ag at Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Rs in lakhs Ry in lakhs
96.74 106.76
96,74 106,76
As at Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Rs in lalkhs - Rg in lakhs
‘ 119.43 106.33
119.43 106.33
As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
86.36 1,525.03
86.36 , 1,525.03
3354 1,763.90
69.15 98.98




Fleur Hotels Private Liniited )
Notes to consolidatéd financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

16 Deferred tax liabilities (net) As at Asat

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
Property, p]aﬁt and equipments and intangible assets : 11,670.13 10,581.22
Borrowings cost 6.70 10.33
Security deposits- impact of discounting 317.33 317.33
Revaluation of land 6,742.38 6,683.95
Deferred tax liability i 18,736.54 . 17,592.83
Impact of sxpenditure charged to the statement of profit and loss in the current/ 59.03 58.44

earlier petiod but allowable for tax purposes on payment basis

Interest on borrowings u/s 438 1,133.53 1,307.23
Provision for bonus i 23.86 ) ) 6.67
Provision for doubtful debts and advances ) 58.95 62.36
Right to use asset/lease liability : 1,765.23 1,458.29
MAT credit entitiement 331.21 1,315.74
Effect of unabsorbed depreciation and business loss 14,669.83 12,579.77
Provision for gratuity 2421 . 3624
Provision for leave compensation 2542 29.14
Non moving inventory - 1.43 1.52
Security deposits payable- impact of dlscountmg . 484.95 486.12
Borrowings cost 64,63 21.20
Others - 20.58 20.58
Deferred tax asset (refer note 30) : . 18,671.86 -~ 17,392.30
Deferred tax (asset)/liability (net) . 64,68 200.53
Deferred tax assets (net} (293.55) 0.00
Deferred tax liability (net) . 358.23 200.53

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accountmg proﬁt multlphed by India’s domestic tax rate for March 31, 2023 and March 31,

2022:
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
Profit/(loss) before tax ' 588252 (11,540.20)
Tax rate : ' 2517% - 27.82% 25.17% - 27.82%
Tax at statutory income tax rate ‘ 1,560.91 - (3,139.75)
Effect of incomes taxable at nil/lower rate : 2.35 108.60
Effect of non-deductible expenses : ’ 5.84 2,02
Tax Effect of expenses/ income not allowed/ requ1rcd to tax under Income tax ) 24.76 11.88
charge/ (credit) in respect of carlier year i
Unrecognized tax agsets (net) -~ (1,517.35) 2,850.78

Net tax expense as per statement of profit and loss : 76.51 (166.47)




Fleur Hotels Private Limited .
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

17

18

Leasc liability

Balance at beginning of the year
Detetion during the year

Interest accrued during the year
Payment of lease liabilities
Balance at end of the year

Current
Non-Current

Other Non-current liabilities

Unamortised partion of security deposits

Total

(This space has been intentionally left blank)

_ Asat Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Rs in lakhs Rs in lekhs
28,193.70 32,760.10
- 4,555.31
2,605.92 3,010.12
2,411.53 - 3,030.21
28,388,009 28,193,770
247,71 157.88
28,140.38 28,035.82 - -
Asgat As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Rs in lakhs Rs in leklis
1,695.70 1,837.01
1,695.70 1,837.01




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to consclidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2623

19 Financial liabilities ' ) As at Asat
. March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Rs in lakhs Rs in fakhs
(i} Short Term Borrowings )

Cash credit from banks (Secdred)* ' . 3,224.21 2,559.88

Loan from related party 685.80 545,70
Current maturities of long-term borrowings (refer note 14(i)) 9,768.07 5,398.68
Total ' ) 13,678.08 - 8,504.26

A *The Cash credit facility from Yes Bank is repayable on demand and carries interest rate of 9.48% p.a. (March 31, 2022: 8.15% - 9.15%
p.a) and is secured by way of:

a)Exclusive charge on all movable assets and current assets of Lemon Tree Hotel Kolkata and Lemon Tree Premier Pune and
b) First charge on all present & future immovable fixed assets(80% portion of undivided part of land) of the Lemon Tree Premier

Andheri kurla Road, Mumbai
¢)First charge on all present & future movable fixed assets and current assets of the Lemon Tree Premier Andheri kurla Road, Mumbai
d) Corporate Gaurantee of Lemon Tree Hotels Limited

B The Cash credit facility from Yes Bank is repayable on demand and carries interest rate 0f 9.35% p.a.(Mach 31, 2022: 9.14%} and 1s
secured by way of:
a) First Charge on the current assets (Present & Future) of Berggruen Hotels Private Limited (excluding project assets of Vizag Hotel) to
secure the working capital facility.

Asat As at
March 31, 2023 31-Mar-22
Rs in lakhs. Rs in lakhs
(ii) Trade payables#
Trade Payables _

-Micro and small enterprises 924.85 385.60
~Other than Micro and small enterprises ) 6,539.39 5,258.22
Total ' 7464.23 5,643.82

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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Fleur Hotels Private Limited

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2013

(iii) Other financial liabilities

20

Interest acerued but not due on borrowings
Sewage treatment plant (STP} liability
Export promotion capital goods (EPCG) kability
Book overdraft

~Payable for capital goods

-Sundry Deposits
Total

Other current liabilities

Advance from customers

Unamortised portion of security deposits

Statutory Dues (Provident fund, GST, TDS and other statory dues)
Total

Asat Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Rsin lakhs Rsin lakhs
262.68 195.58
235.00 235,00
- 168.06
12.71 43 82
4,664.64 962.74
46,44 46.44
5,221.47 1,651.64
Ag at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
622.50 432,29 .
141.31 141.31
711.46 539.21
1,475.27 1,112.80




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Naotes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

21 Revenué from operations

Sale of products and services

- Room rental

- Food and beverage (excluding liquor and wins)

~ Liquor and winz

- Banguet rentals

- Telephone and telex

- Othér Services (including service charge income)

Other Operating Revenue
- Commission income
Revenue from operations

22 Other Income

Excess provision written back
Waiver of rent

Profit on sale of fixed assets
License fees received

Rent receiyed

Gain on termination of lease
Govememnt subsidy-RIPS 2014 (refer note 44)
Exchange difference (net)

Miscellaneons income

Total

23 Cost of food and beverages consumed

(a) Consumption of food & beverages excluding liguor & wine
Inventory at the beginning of the year
Add: Purchases

Lesy: Inventory at the end of the year
Cost of food and beverage consumed

(b} Consumption of liguor & wine
Inventory at the beginning of the year
Add: Purchases :

Lesg: Inventory at the end of the year
Cost of liquor and wine consimed

Total {a+b)

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

Hg in lakhs Rs in lakhs

45,732,87 20,951.52
7,196.75 3,844.27
B855.23 371.87
276.40 123.30
0.33 0.50
3,287.32 1,684.44
0.32 0.07
57,349.22 26,975.97

For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2023 Marcl, 31,2022
Rs ko lakhs Rs in lakhs

134.51 33511
- 433.70

9.30 -
451,13 451.13
11.66 11,58
- 323.67

86.61 -

0.01 -
43,54 78.36
736.76 1,631.55

. For the year ended

Fox the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Re in lakhs Ry in fakhs
101.44 . $1.76
3,236.19 1,902.80
3,337.63 1,984.56 -
122.88 101.44
3.214.75 1,883,12
97.55 102,15
252,95 106.18
350,50 208,32
114,19 97,55
236,31 110.77
3,451,068 1,993.89




Fleur Hofels Private Limited

MNotes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

.24 Employee benefit expense

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contribution to provident fund and other funds

Gratuity expense
Staff welfare expenses

Total

25(n) Power and fuel

Power and fuel

Taotal

25(b) Stamp duty expenses

Stamp duty expenses

Total

25(c) Other Expenses

Consumption of stores, cutlery, crockery, linen, provisions and others

Linen & uniform washing and laundry expenses

Guest transportation

Spa expenses

Subseription charges

Repair and maintenance

- Buildings

- Plant and machinery

- Others

Rent

Rates and taxes

Insurance

Comrmunication costs

Prinfing and stationery

Traveling and conveyance

Vehicle renning and maintenance
Advertisement and business promotion
Munagereni feey

Cormnission ~other than sole selling agent
Security and ¢leaning expenses
Membership and subscriptions

Legal and professional fees

Advances written off

Newspapr & Perodical

Freight and cartage

Corporate social responsibility*

Loss on sale of property, plant & equipmeni
CWIP writter: off :
Payment to auditor*

Donations

Miscellaneous sxpenses

Total

*Payment to anditor {exeluding Goods and service tax}

For Statutozry audit

For Tax audit .
For Other services

Reimbursement of expenses

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
7,290,81 4.,653.26
464.82 320.73
29.86 32.23
! 779.62 323,36
8,565.11 532961
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 Maceh 31, 2022
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
4,396.61 2,765.81
‘ 4,356.61 2,765.81
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
478.42 1,525,03
478,42 1,525.03
For the vear ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Rs fn lakhs Rs in lakhs
872.50 469.83
523.02 363.59
323.75 } 74.62
193.11 48.64
96.75 71.54
642.31 187.97
77150 -530.16
527.27 366,58
165.02 132,72
1,248.20 1,217.02
182.87 149,71
189.12 15138
122.58 74,65
§6.97 35.79
81.68 57.30
1,799.29 858.78
- 3,910,65 1,430.55
2,349.23 1,269.15
392,21 342,34
12.39 9.25
20,77 311.04
0.48 7.15
912
0.32 0.43
1.53 5.07
- (0.53)
- 2,75
59.49 43,00
0.78 -
262.00 113,07
15,136.41 8,223,855
47.25 33.00
2.25 2.60
8.00 8.00
1.99
59.49 43.00




Fleur Hotels Private Limited .
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
Details of CSR expenditure: :

For the year ended

Tor the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
(&) Gross amount required to be spent by the Group during the year 1,53 5.07
7 In cash Yet to be paid in cash
(b) Amount spent during the year ended on 315t March, 2023:
i)  Construction/acquisition of any asset - -
ii)  On purposes other than (i) above 1.53 -
. In cash Yet to be paid in cash
(e) Amount spent during the year ended on 31st March, 20222 -
1) Construction/acquisition of any asset - -
iy  On purposes other than (i) above 507 »
The Company, through CSR initiative focuses on following areas:
* Vocational skilling of Person with disabilities, for mainsiream employment
* Empowerment of weaker section of society through edueation and skil! training
¢ Giving special care to disabled’s, advocacy for inclusion and early identification of person with
disabilities
26 Depreciation and amortization expense For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Rs in Iakhs Rs in lakhs
Depreciation of tangible assets 5,863.07 6,551.18
Amortization of intangible assets 45.22 76.34
Depreciation of right {c use asset 1,110.67 1,299.61
Total 7.018.96 7,927.13
27 Finance costs For the year ended For the year ended
' March 31, 2023 March 31,2022
Rs jn lakhs R jn [akhg
Intgrest .
~ on term loans from banks . 9,629.58 8,881.26
- on loans from others 1,287.45 1,138.08
- on vehicle loans 1431 21.10
- on other credit facilities from banks 30.28 -
- on others 22.17 B1.80
- on Lease Liability 2,067.37 2,494,46
Bank charges (including commission on credit card collection} 33031 161.18
1345147 12,777.88

Total




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to consolldated financial statenaents for the year ended March 31, 2023

28 Finance income For the year ended - For the year ended
Mareh 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Rs ini lakhs Rs in lakhs

Interest Income on 2

-Bank Deposits : 67.67 204.95
- Interest on income tax refund 10.44 38,53
Profit on sale of investment : - 0.01
-Others 216.47 151.67

Total _ ' 294,58 395.18

29 Earniug/oss per share (Basic EPS and Diluted EPS)

Basic EPS amounts are caleulated by dividing the profit for the period/year attributable to equity holders of the parent by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the period/ysar, : ’

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the parent by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstnding during the period/year plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity
shares into equity shares,

The earnings/{loss) and weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the caloulation of Basic and Diluted EPS are as follows:

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31,2022
Earning/(loss} attributable to equity holders (for basic and diluted) 5,806.01 (11,373.73)
Weighted average munber of equity Shares (for basic and diluted earnings per sharey* - 9,78,31,493 9,78,31,493
Basie and Diluted (loss)/earnings per share . 5.93 T (11.63)

* The weighted average number of shares lakes into account the welghted averape effect of changes in share transactions during the year. There have been
no other transactions involving equity shares ar potential equity shares between the reporting date and the date of authorisation of these financial statements.




Fleur Hotels Private Limited . _
"Notes to consolidated financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2023

30. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Group financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities and other commitments. Uncertainty about these judgements,
estimates and.assumptions could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying
amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods. Existing circumstances and assumptions about
future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are
beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis and the revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised.

1. Critical judgements, estimates and assumptions
a. Impairment of property, plant and equipment

Each hotel property is an identifiable asset that generates cash inflows and is independent of the cash
inflows of the other hotel properties, hence identified as cash generating units. The Group assesses the
carrying amount of hotel properties (CGU) to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. Where the carrying amount of CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss (if any) is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

While assessing the recoverable amount, the Company used the discounted cash flow approach
including various significant estimates and assumptions such as forecast of future revenue, operating
margins, growth rate and selection of the discount rates, The key assumptions used for the calculations
are as follows: '

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As gt March 31, 2022
Discount Rate (pre tax rate of WACC) : 12.50% 11.70%-~ 13.00%
Long Term Growth Rate 550% 5.00%

As at March 31, 2023, the estimated recoverable amount of the CGU exceeded its carrying amount. -
2. Leases

The Group has taken certain land and land & building on long term lease basis. The lease agreements
generally have an escalation clause and are generally non-cancellable. In assessing whether the Group
is reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend a lease, or not to exercise an option to terminate a
lease, it considers all relevant facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive for the Group
to exercise the option to extend the lease, or not to exercise the option to terminate the lease. The Group
evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of IND AS 116.
Identification of a lease requires judgment. The Group uses judgement in assessing the lease term and
the applicable discount rate. The discount rate is generally based on the incremental borrowing rate.

3. Loss Allowance on trade receivables (Expected credit loss)

An impairment analysis of trade receivables is performed at each reporting period based on the Group’s
history of collections, customer’s creditworthiness, existing market conditions as well as forward
looking estimates. Basis this assessment, the allowance for doubtful trade receivables as at March 31,
2023 is congidered adequate. f




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2023

4. Taxes

Considering that nature of the Group’s operations and history of past tax losses, deferred tax assets
(including MAT credit) are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
generated in future against which the deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unabsorbed
depreciation and tax losses can be utilised. Accordingly, it is considered prudent to recognize the
deferred tax assets only to the extent of deferred tax liabilities and the Group has not recognised
deferred tax assets of Rs 5,711.98 lakhs (March 31, 2022: Rs 7,734.16 lakhs).

5. Impairment of Goodwill

Each hotel property is an identifiable asset as it benefits from the synergies of the acquisition, hence
identified as cash generating unit (CGU). Goodwill recognized on business combination is tested for
impairment on annual basis or whenever there is an indication that the recoverable amount of CGU is
less than its carrying amount. The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based on higher of
value-in-use and fair value less cost of disposal. The calculation of value in use of a CGU involves use
of significant assumptions including future economic and market conditions.
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Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

32. Gratuily

The Group has a defined benefit gratuity plan (funded). The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of
Gratuity Act, 1972, Under the act, employee who has completed five years of service is entitled to specific
benefit. The level of benefits provided depends on the member’s length of service and salary at retirement
age. The fund has the form of a trust and it is governed by the Board of Trustees, which consists of an
equal number of employer and employee representatives. The Board of Trusiees is responsible for the
administration of the plan assets and for the definition of the investment strategy. The Trust Fund has taken
a Scheme of Insurance, whereby these contributions are transferred to the insurer. The Group makes
provision of such gratuity asset/ lability in the books of accounts on the basis of actuarial valuation as per
the Projected unit credit method. ‘

Bs. in lokhs

Benefit Liability | March31,2023 | March 31,2022

Gratuity plan _ : 102,56 | - 124.75
Total C 102.56 | 124.75

Risk analysw
Group is exposed to a number of risks in 1 the defined benefit plans. Most s1g111ficant risks pertammg to defined
benefits plans and management estimation of the impact of these risks are as follows:

o Investment risk
The most of the Indian defined benefit plans are funded with Life Insurance Corporation of India.
Group does not have any liberty to manage the fund provided to Life Insurance Corporation of India;

“The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate determined by

reference to Government of Tndia bonds for Group’s Indian operations. If the return on plan asset is
below this rate, it will create a plan deficit.

e Interest risk _ _ -
A decrease in the interest rate on plan assets will increase the plan liability.

+ Longevity risk/life expectancy :
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of
the mortality of plan participants both during and at the end of the employment. Increases in the life
expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan liability.

e Salary growth risk
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of
plan participants. An increase in the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan liability.
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Fleur Hotels Private Limited

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2023

The major categories of plan assets of the fair value of the total plan assets

are as follows:

March 31,

March 31,
2023 2022
Unquoted investments:
Asset invested in insurance scheme with the LIC 100% 100%
Total 100% 100%

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations for the

-

Group’s plans are shown below:

]

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Discount rate:
Pension plan 7.20% 6.02%
Future salary increases:
Pension plan 5.00% 5.00%
Life expectation for pensioners at the age of 65: Years Years
Pension plan
Male 60 60
Female 60 60

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as at March 3

1, 2023 is as shown below:

India gratuity p}ah:
Rs in lakhs
March 31, March 31, . March 31, March 31,
2023 2023 2023 2023
Assumptions Discount rate Future salary increases

Sensitivity Level 1% increase 1% decrease

1% increase 1% decrease

Impact on defined benefit

obligation (4.22) 451 456 (4.35)
Rs inlakhs
March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,
2022 2022 2022 2022
Assumptions Discount rate Future salary increases

Sensitivity Level 1% increase 1% decrease

1% increase 196 decrease

Impact on defined benefit

obligation (4.97) | 532

5.32




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

The sensitivity analysis above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on
defined benefit obligation as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the
reporting period.

The following payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in future years:

Rs. in lakhs
For the year ended ' For the year ended
- Puration (Years) March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

1 38.31 : 39.01

2 3474 3247

3 24.42 30.86

4 19.32 _ 22,08

5 1632 17.39

Above 5 53.32 ' 58.04

Total expected payments 186.43 19985

The average duration of the deﬁned benetit plan obhgatlon at the end of the reporting period is 4.29 years
(March 31, 2022: 4.50 vears).

33, Commitments and contingencies

a. Leases
Operating lease commitments — Group as lessee
The Group has taken hotel properties under operating lease agreements. These are generally cancellable and

are renewable by mutual consent on mutually agreed terms. The lease for hotel properties are non-cancellable
for a period of twenty three to twenty nine years.

The weighted average of incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities is 9.72% (March 31, 2022
9.72%).

b. Commitments
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for:

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed and not provided for March 31, 2023 Rs. 15,844.65
lakhs (March 31, 2022: Rs.15,035.53 lakhs)




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

¢. Contingent liabilities

(i) Legal claim contingency
' Rs. inlakhs
March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022

a. |Counter guarantees issued in respect of guarantees

issued by company’s bankers - 1,496.95 1,234.77
b. [Service Tax* ‘ 225.05 225.05
c. |Income tax** : 27.25 -

“*(amount paid under protest— 23.10 lakhs)
**(amount paid under protest/adjusted against refund - 10.72 lakhs)

The Group’s pending litigations above pertains to proceedings pending with Income Tax, VAT tax and other
authorities. The Group has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately provided
for where provisions are required and disclosed as contingent liabilities where applicable, in its financial
statements. The Group does not expect the outcome of these proceedings to have a materially adverse effect
on its financial statements.

(ii) During the earlier years, Hyacinth Hotels Private Limited, one of the subsidiary company, has taken land on
lease from Delhi International Airport (P) Ltd. (DIAL) for which South Dethi Municipal Corporation (‘the
Authority”) has raised demand of Rs. 68.20 lakhs (for the financial Years 2010-11 to financial years 2013~
2014) towards annual value in respect of the hotel property situated in Hospitality District, Aerocity
Considering that the area occupied by the Company is 59% of the hotel property, it has made provision of Rs.
119.43 takhs (Refer note 15) in this regard.

(iif) Berggruen Hotels Private Limited (Subsidiary Company) has entered into a lease agreement in April, 2008
with the land owners of the Baroda property to construct a hotel in the said property pursuant to which sum of
Rs. 100 Lakhs has been paid to the property owners as refundable security deposit. As per the Lease
agreement, on execution of the said Lease Deed, owners were obliged to deliver to the Company, vacant and
peaceful possession of the said property and to demolish existing structure standing thereon in order to enable -
the Subsidiary Company to construct the proposedhotel on the said property. More than five years have
elapsed since execution of the said Lease Deed and despite various assurances and promises, the owners have
failed to hand over possession of the said property and hence the Subsidiary Company terminated the lease
agreement and asked immediately to refund the refundable security deposit along with interest at the rate of
25% per annum, Subsequent to termination of the lease agreement, the Subsidiary Company has also filed the
case against owners for recovery of monies paid to them along with the interest. The case is subjudice and the
Subsidiary Company expects the judgment in its favour.

(iv) The Group does not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which there are any
material foreseeable losses.




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

d. Note on Provident Fund:

Based upon the legal opinion obtained by the management, Company is not required to create provisions in
books of accounts in view of the judgement of the Hon’ble Supreme court in the case of Vivekananda
Vidyamandir vs Regional Provident Fund Commissioner (I1), West Bengal and subsequent dismissal
of review petition by Hon’ble Supreme court in the case of review petition No. 001972-001973/2019 in
civil appeal 3965-3966 in the matter of Surya Roshni Ltd Vs Employees Provident Fund and Another.

Considering the equitable cause, the High Courts may give prospective effect to the judgement which can be
done in exercise of inherent powers of High Court under Article 226 of the constitution of India.

In case of Company retrospective effect is remote and at present uniformity is maintained across all
brands/grades. - '

P

e. Sub Lease

The license fee recognised as income during the year for non-cancellable arrangements relating fo provision
for sub lease of Hotel as per the agreements is Rs. 228.37 lakhs and Rs.216.47 lakhs for the year ended March
. 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 respectively.

Particular ‘ As at March 31, 2023 | As at March 31, 2022
Future minimum lease payment receivable ‘

Not later than one year 240.94 228.37 .
Later than one year but not later than five years | 1,103.75 1,046.21

Later than five vears 3,103.62 3,402.10

Total 4,448.31 4.676.68




Fleur Hotels Private Limited

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

34, Related Party Transactions

Names of related parties
Holding company

Fellow subsidiary companies

Key Management Personnel

Key Management Personnel (Managing Director,
Whole time director, manager and 01her managerial
personnel) of Subsidiaries

Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by'
key management personnel or their relatives

Enterprise in which Holding company has
Significant Influence

- Lemon Tree Hotels Limited

- Manakin Resorts Private Limited

- Canary Hofels Private limited

- Carnation Hotels Private Limited

- Sukhsagar Complexes Private Limited
-Oriole Dr Fresh Hotels Private Limited

-Mr. Pradeep Mathur (Chairman and Independent
Director) _

-Mr, Patanjali Govind Keswani (Managing Director)
-Mr. Aditya Madhav Keswani (Director) (w.e.l August
2,2022) :

-Mr, Rattan Keswani (Director) (Upto March 31 2022) -
~Mr, Dominic James Doran (Director)

-Mr. Paramartha Saikia (Independent Director)

-Mr. Ashish Kumar Guha (Independent Director)

-Mr, Arindam Kumar Bhattacharya (Independent
Director)

-Mr Niten Malhan{Independent Directory

-Mr, Sumant Jaidka (Whole Time Director of Inovoa
Hotels and Resorts Limited)

-Ms. Anshu Sarin (Whole Time Director & CEO of
Berggruen Hotels Private Limited)

-Ms. Natasha Yashpal (Whole Time Director of Iora

_ Hotels Private Limited) (upto November 14, 2022)

- Mr Sameer Singh (Whote time director of Iora Hotels
Private Limited) (w.e.f December 01, 2022)

- Toucan Real Estates Private Limited

-Mind Leaders Learning India Private Limited

Additional related parties as per Companies Act 2013 with whom transactions havé taken place during the

year:
Chief financial Officer

Company Secretary -

: Mt. Inder Pal Batra

: Ms. Sonali Manchanda




- - - SV - CCBW-TE .
- - - - LT6 - €Z-IBN-1E | PONUNT JjeAlL] S[2OH ATRUE)
- - - - - £C'F9 CTBINCLE
- - - - - ¥UET XA A ) POt S[2J0F] 221, oW ]
Auedurod
91} Ag PAAISIA JUNOWY
- - - - - oy CTIBINTTE,
- - - - - 8+°01 EC-TBIN-TE PRATAITT] S[0H @21], DO
Jieyaq
s Auedwod uo paaanouy
sasuadxa Jo YIS QU
- - - - - - 65°TET TT-IBN-TE
- - - - - LISE eT-IBN-TE PRI} S[210H @ad], uowaT]
Lyred 3o pregaq ue pred
$95UIAX3 JO JUITIISINGUIRNY
saAnePRI SALIRIPISqNS
JauANgyuL ki )iy Jo (jpuuosiad (1ouuosiad
eSS | 20 pPauosted [ELIDSBUETE [FLSeuRm
seq NRURdeuUEm | I3)0 PUR PSBURM | I9N)0 pug JdSeus SOLIBIDISAMS )
Aoveduzon A Aq £10J32.01p N “103123.11p TN .Be.uw 4 Auwedwmoy Suzppoyg W—Mﬁﬂ Lreg
Suipjoy Pasudnful A[OYAN “T0)K( AOYA 101X A A POIEIR st SHODIESUELL
© TOTYAL Ul Apuzoymdis Surdevuey) Surdeusyy)
astidIoyoy 10 pauMo [punosIg PURosIe g
sastidaayry JBURIeuB]A A3y JuamaSeney A3y
Syyop Ul sy

Tea4 [EIOUBUIJ JUBAS[SI 21} 10F SaTIed Poje[oI Ui OJUI PIISIUS U32q SABT JB) SUONORSURT JO JUNOTHE [2j0} U} sopiaoid ojqe) SuImo[oy S

€707 ‘1€ Y2IBIN PAapud JeIA 9Y) A0 SJUIWIIE}S [BIDURWE] PIICPIJOSUOD 0) SIJON
Py ajearid S[P210H N34



NS~
NILOY 7 - - - 00°S - €T-TRN-1E
} (udye]) suso|
- - - - - 0968 TTERW-1E
- - - - - 09°68 EC-IBN-IE pajnuT] S[910H 2al], vowa|
Ayaed oy Jo
JIEqaq U0 PIAIIIN] JuUNoOury
- - - - 900 - TTEWCTE
- _ _ _ _ _ S [ehliy
. CCIENCLE a)eALL] soxa[duro)) IeSesng
- - - - 150 - CCTEN-TE
AT PNy Sjealld
- - - - - - ECTNCLE S[210H] UsSI "I S[OLID)
- - - - - 8F1 CCTIEN-TE
- - - - - el £CIEN-IE PSjrUry S0 93l U0mwReT
- - - - 7o'l - CTRINCTE )
- - - - - - ET-IBN-TE | PRI QleALI] S[9)0H Areue))
Amedurod
a3 Aq pied Junowry
saaneld.l SILIZIpISqNY
duangyur mm Jo (ppumosiad (Puuosxad
eSS | a0 pPuuosrad [LdfEhidiia ] [eLiddenem
sey JUSHSEUBIN | IO PHE JRSBRURML | 1916 puv IaSeurm c
Aveduros A3y Aq 10331 oy CE0JIIIP I mum“”wwﬁ_um Auedwo)) Suipjoyg ﬂﬂﬂ:ﬁ S . uamnwum
sSmipioH PadYTRUI AOYA, “1013321(F AOYAA “T03I3II( oA - A PRERY 4 B L
oI s oy ADUedTG3Is fwmdenery) smseusy)
asurdrany J0 PIUMO JELLOTNES | PuuesIsy
sasrudaoyuy JUIWIFRUBIA] AV JIURTBUBIA] A

€707 ‘1€ YIIBIA POPUd Ae3L () A0 SJUIWIIE]S [BIDUEBUIJ PIIBPI[OSUOD 0] SIJON
_ PRI 9)BALLJ S[IIOH ABI[ 4




pred sas 1 ynawoSeue i

- - - - L¥o1Z CTTBN-TE :
. (ssof pue jyord
) ) ) ) ) . S JO JUSTUSIRIS 0} PAJIGSP IALISAI
roore LRI E uotezienbs osea] Surpnjoxa)
PRITIFY S[RI10T] 221, TOWa]
PIAIIIIY 9] ASUAIT]
B " - - 0001 - TeENCLE
- - - _ . - T pajry
: o'F9 ECRINCLE NBATI] 5105 UTRUEIN
- - - - 00°ZF1 - CCIBIN-IE
2 o pajiry
- - - - - ECIEN-TE 9IBALL{ S[91OH UOLELIE))
uoyey weoy Jo yunuieday
- - - - - - TCIEN-TE
00007 £ A
- - - - . - S)RALL] SIS0 UOREUIR))
- - - - 08'8S - TTHRN-1 €
PRI}
SIATB[II SILIEIPISqUS
douanyur 1y Jo (puuosiad {joamosiod
JeNJuESs | 10 puuosiad [ELRSvnR [eLIdSRTRT ,
sey JEIURSELUBNE | IO pUE Jadeurm | J9G)0 PUE JASRUEH
Aoedmod A9y Aq “X0)22.11p Iy “10)93.J1p Wi} muﬂ“mcwﬁ_a Auedwmoy SmploH WMM:H - 4 STO uumnﬁm
Swiplon poruanpul IO ‘70321 AOY A “X01097E(T 12 : : A POTRY Wt B L
OIYM W Apuedyrads surdeue)) SUISBUR AT}
asudayuy 10 paumo [PUUOSI3 puuosng
sasprdaayusg JUDHIASRURIA] AFf R SeuRy] A9

€707 ‘1€ YOIEIy PIpPUD IBaA af) I0J SJUIWNI)€}S [FIOUBUIJ PRJEPI[OSUOD 0] S3JON
PajiwIy ajeAlld S[2)J0H ANd[g




- - - 6118 - TTIBN-TE
. S payrry
- - - ¥6'56 - eEACLE BALL S[I0L{ HOTRILIE )
- - - - LY - CTIEN-TE
. _TETAT pepmry
_ _ _ _ 0T EST - ,mN W-TE APALL S110S3Y UR[BURIN
NP JOU JNG PRIV JSAINUY
- - - - £LEL - CT-IEN-TE
So'e - IR pauaT
- - - - 0°e 1 ECINCLE 21BALL] S[QI0H UOLRUIR)
- - - - 89°0F - CTIEN-I €
s CT-IRIN-TS PoyuuT
- - - - 23 - 4 4 BALL] SIIO50Y UTRGRIA]
{sso015)) pred ysoxuy
80°EL - - - - - TTIBN-TE
. _ . _ _ - AT ) PoHUIFT oA
0eTr SCINCLE | expuy Stmmresry siopeary puiy
Pred 334 Supuredy,
- - - - - 8ETOT'E TCTRN-TE
- - - - - 98'9S7°L £TIRNCTE PaIIUL} S[210H 321, UOWI]
SANEBI SILICIPISqRY
uanfyul Ric]iE] Jo (puuosyad (aunosrad
JMENHUSES | .10 Puuosaad [eLISeuR [ELI3SRUEm
S| TIIERSEHEN | I9q30 PUE JDSRUR | JSI)0 PUR RFeUR S - e
Auedozod A3y £q ‘10)32.0p ) £X0323.1p AN HEIDISq Aueduro) SuipjoH papuy d
5 , " P Mo - Iedx PAEPY YA STUOLIBSURI],
HIPIOE] padsuanpjur AOYA “T0331(] AOY AN “T0JII([
YIyas Uf Apmesgmudis SuBeuey) swseuey)
astxdryyoy JI0 PIEMO [PUHOSIdJ [PuuosIg
saspidaoyagy JuoWRSEARy Aay] JOURSEUBI 43

€707 ‘1€ YIIBA POPUI X4 3Y) I0J S)UDMIIELS [BIDURUIJ PIJEPI[OSUOI 0] SIJON
PAIWET 3BATId S[310H 1R3[4




sasuadxiy
1exde) Jo USRS IMGUITIYY

- - - - - - CCCEIACLY
- - 6T'8Y - - - £T-TRIN-TE q3ulg Jestueg I
secl (Al il R
aTre ECBACIE BPUBYDUBA I[EUOS "SI
- - - PL'8E - - CTCIEN-TE
- - - Trss - - CTTBINTE ened [ed Iopu] I
- - L¥'SE - - - cBW-TE
- - 80°7¢ - - - EC-TBN-TE Tedyse X erseien ‘SI
- - LOTIH - - - CTIBI-TE .
- - £OFEL - - - T TBIN-TE es ngsuy SN
- - oLy - - - CTIRN-TE _
- - 76°89 - - - ECTEN-TE EPIEQUETIAG “IjA
PIEJ HONeINUNTIYY
saAnRI SALIRIpISqQuS
AdWINLIUI i) Jo {puuosaad (ppuuosasd
JuedIudls | 10 Puuosad [pirasemem [eLPSewERUn
suq JUPSEUBWL | II)0 PUB IISBUBW | JIYI0 PUE JOEBURIL . ;
Auedmod A% Aq 10)02.I1p WLy 10)22.01p WL} wu_“”wﬁwﬁ:m Aasdme) Suipfoy ﬂﬂﬂnm— N s SO uawnﬁm
sSuipjoH paduaanjyul IOYAA “A030311(] A[OYAA “30IIII(] Lt A POERY i H L
LRILET 1 Apueongmsts Smseuey) duideuey)
asprdasyuy I0 paUMO [PunosIag Pruaosy
sastidayuy | jEowSevueld 49y | juamRSeuey 403

€707 ‘TE YOIRIN PAPUd Ivak aY) X0] SIUIWAIE)S [RIDERULJ PIJEPI[OSUOD 0) SAJON
_ Paylwl 3)eAlld S[310H 034




- - - - - 00°L06°€6 CCIEN-1E
- - - - - 00°L06°C6 ETTRIN-TE PATWIT S]=10 ] S5, Wothef
PRAIAIRT
U0 10} UNE ] 3QuLIENL}
- - - §T'T - - CTTIBN-TIE
- - - 0L0 - - £ IBIN-TE URTJETAL TN TN
- - - SL0 - - CTIBN-TE
- - - SO°L - - ET-TRN-TE e}y desperd I
- - - 001 - - CCTRIN-TE
~ - - 0’1 - - £ IBIN-TE BITES elpeureled TN
- B - ST'T - - CTTEN-TE
- - - ] - - £TIRN-LE BURD) JBUIN USTHSY "I
§29,] SUNHE 103K
[AF:14¢ - - - - CCIEACTE .
- 0E¥E - - - - ECBIN-[E oyl
‘ QJBALLJ S2]EISH (RS UEONO
SAAHE[II SILIRIPISANS }
dUIMJuI XI9%) Jo {[pumnosiad (fpunosaad
JUEHIGSIS | J0 PUmosIad [ELaSeusm [ELRSeuRm
SEY JUIMITRUBW | JIYIO PUE SEULW | JOT)O pUk LFeurW )
Auedurod A9 Aq “I0]32.II TN “I0)IIIIP WD) muﬂ”wm_wﬁ:w Auedwon) Surpjoy ﬂu%.:mm 1EIS A SUO QNMHMA
Sumiproy padudngul Ao ‘1030201 WA “A0)T(q oA ‘ A PAvRL " L
YIMM U1 Apuedpmss Surseuey) Surdeuepy) -
asudiaug I0 PIUMO PUuosJg [PuuosIag
sasndyuy JHIWAGRURA] 43 yaTdeue g £oSf

€707 ‘1€ YOIBI\ POPUA IEI4A o1} 10] S)UIWIIBS [BIDTRUL] uo«mu:cmnou 0] S3j0N
. "PIIWITY BALIJ S[10H I03[A



- - - - LY TLOE TTIRN-T €
- - - - 677798 LTIRACTE PRITHT ] S[J0H 931], HoUx]
Jlqeied Ipei],
- 00°Z61 - - - - CTIEN-TE
- 00°Co1 - - - - CZ-TRN-TE pojnIr |
. 9BALLJ MIBISH (80 WeIno ],
- - - - - 00°058°¢ TTIRN-TE
- - - - - 00°0S8°€" AL Gl 53 PRI SEIOT] 99, UOWa]
usodaq Hrmaeg
NI /(Ipar)) -pud aeak
3Y) J¥ SUTPUE)SHNO SIIUE[BY
- - - - 00°8¢1 - TCIEN-TE
00'8T€ ST-TN-TE poumel
- - - - - JIBALLY S[230L UOTEBIIR))
- - - - OLLly - (4
08°LSE EZ-TeI-TE PO
- - - - - MBATIJ S0S9Y UDBUEA
U B} W0 -pIId Iudk
SIANE[AL SoLIRIpISqNS .
aduanpyur g} j0 {(Punosrd - (eumosaad
meogmudls | X0 puuosiad jLaREFE il flA ekl
$BY] JOOWHTeULT | GIF)0 pue ISeusw | 190 pue JaSeuriu : .
SILIEIPISqNS apu L
Luedwmod Aoy Aq ‘T0JXAIP own ‘ 10392a1p W .Bm.mm.,m_ Auedwo)) Surpjog ﬂuﬂ?ﬁ —— mnoduamwm.—m
SurpjoH JEALIETIES (IS INLAN “H0YORIN IO AA “T0NTI(Y : ¥
Por st ux Apuesgusis SurdvuEy) SumBeue)
astxdaayuy 16 pIEMO PUHsId] PugesIg
sastaduy JMAUTIS RO BIA] £33 JEIWISBUBIA] Ay

€707 “I€ YOIBI\ POPUD AEIA 0() 10] S)UIWIJE]S [BEIdURUI] ﬁo::..:om:ou 0} SajoN
: P 3}BALLd SI310H Ind]4




- 06°6L - - - - TTIRN-IE
R . . j _ j IBA payII |
£Ts6 | EECTE LATI serelsH [eay WeIna ],
aueApy wrde)
(z6'8) - - - - - TR 1€
. - - _ - . BT PRIRUIT jeALy
s6'C NI eIpu] Sultied’| $19pea] PUy]
- - o'zt - - - TCTN-IE ‘
- - - - - - ECTEIN-TE EXpIE[ JUETUag T
SIAT)E[II SILIBIPISGNS
=RYE LI IR} Jo (pPuuocszad (rumostad
juedymss | 1o pucosyad [eLIddEuR [e1adenem
sey JuRUSEUR T .ﬁe.mwo puk pivUEW | I9Y)0 pug Idvneul PN— . . popug faaeg
Aueduxod Aoy 4q 10)32.11p dWIN) 103230 J1y) o Avedwmon) Suipjoy - 159 S 4 STOBOESUE
SuipjoH padudsBul IOYA, “F0FIAI( oY AN “I0333a1(] o4 o A PO 1t B L
T Ul Apmeygrasis Surdeuspy) Surdeusy)
asudispog 10 pause pPegosdg | Punosiag
sastdiayuy ymomaSeuvyl Aoy JEIUWDSeURIA] A%

€70T L€ YIIBIN POPUD JE34 9y} 10] SJUIMNIIE)S [EIDUEUI] PIJEPI[OSTOD 0) wﬁcZ

POjIWL) 93BALLJ S[PI0H INA|4




Fleur Hotels Private Limited .
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the vear ended Mar¢h 31, 2023

)

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

Outstanding balances with related parties at the year-end are unsecured and interest free and settlement
occurs in cash. For the year ended March 31, 2023, the Company has not recorded any impairment of
receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties (March 31, 2022: Rs Nil). This assessment is
undertaken each financial year through examining the financial position of the related party and the
market in which the related party operates, '

Commitments with related parties

The Group has not entered into any commitments with related parties during the year.

35, Fair value measurement
a. Financial assets  Rs. inlakhs
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
EVTPL Amortised FVTPL Amortised
Cost Cost
Financial Assets : :
Trade Receivables - 3,142.36 - 1,492.08
Investments 0.41 - 041 -
Security Deposits - 5,69 5 43 - 5,591.97
Other bank . ' ‘
balances - 1,073.78 - 634.44
Cash and Cash
Equivalents ) 1,337.65 i 3,600.41
Interest accrued
on deposit with - 305.72 - 329.46
banks and others. '
Other armount ; 596.25 - 490.91
recoverable
Total Financial 0.41 12,151.19 0.41 12,139.27
Assets '
b. Financial Iiabilities Rs. In lakhs
March 31, 2023 “March 31, 2022
EVIPL Amortised FVTPL Amortised
Cost _ Cost
Borrowings - 131,267.68 - ‘ 1,28,001.71
Trade Payables - 7,464.22 - 5,643.82
Other Financial - ' :
Liabilitios - 6,044.59 - 165164
o - 28,388.09 - 28,193.70
Lease Liabilities .
Total Financial
Liabilities - 173,164.58 - 163,490.87
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. Fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and liabilities
Fair value measurement '
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date under current market conditions.

The Group categorizes assets and liabilities measured at fair value into one of three levels depending on
the ability to observe inputs employed in their measurement which are described as follows:

i) Levell ‘
Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities,

ii) Level 2 :
Inputs are inputs that are observable, eithet directly or indirectly, other than quoted prices mcluded
within level 1 for the asset or hablhty

iti) Level 3
Inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or hablhty reflecting significant modifications to observable
related market data or Group’s assumptions about pricing by market participants.

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Group’s assets and liabilities: -

Financial assets and labilities measured at fair value

_ March 31, 2023 .
Level 1 Level 2 Tevel 3 Total
Financial assets | | '
Financial investments as FVTPL
Ungquoted equity instruments - - 0.41 0.41

March 31, 2022

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets .
Financial investments as FVTPL - _
Unquoted equity instruments - . - .41 | 041

The management assessed that fair values of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade payables,
bank overdrafts, Interest accrued on bank deposits with banks, other current financial assets and other
current financial liabilities approximates their carrying amounts largely due to the shoft-term maturities
of these instruments.

The fair values of loans, securify deposits, borrowings and other financial assets and liabilities are
considered to be the same as their carrying values, as there is an immaterial change in the lending rates.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

e The fair values of the investment in mufual funds have been estimated based on NAV of the
assets at each reporting date ‘
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36. Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables. The
main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Group's operations and to support its
operations. The Group's financial assets include loans, trade and other receivables, and cash & cash
equivalents that dertve directly from its operations.

The Group is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's senior management
oversees the management of these risks. The Group's senior management is supported by a financial risk
commitiee that advises on financial risks and the appropriate financial risk governance framework for the
Group. This financial risk committee provides assurance to the Group's senior management that the
Group's financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedure and that financial
risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Group's policies and risk objectives.
The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each risk, which are summarised as
below:

Market risk-

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises interest rate risk Financial instruments
affected by market risk include loans and borrowings.

Interest rate visk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. The Group’s -exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates. The
Group is carrying its borrowings primarily at variable rate. The Group expects the variable rate to
decline, accordmgly the Group is currently carrying its loans at variable interest rates.

Rs, In lakhs

March 31,2023 March 31, 2022

Variable rate borrowings - ' 130,436.65. ~ 12731491

Fixed rate borrowings '836.03 686.79

Interest rate sensitivity

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that
portiont of loans and borrowings affected, after the impact of hedge accounting. With all other variabies held
constant, the Group’s profit before tax is affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows: -

Increase/decrease Effect on profit
in basis points before tax
Rs. Inlakhs
March 31, 2023
Floating rate borrowing 50 (578.13)
Floating rate borrowing -50 578.13
March 31, 2022 '
Floating rate borrowing 50 (61 3:.18) '
Floating rate borrowin ' =50 -
| W'é&g g g L : 613.18
2 ;
'E' hattered Q‘...
=2 its
e %E A

o

~
L x>
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Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because
of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group has no exposure in foreign currency.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer
contract, leading to a financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily
trade receivables and deposits to landlords) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks
and financial institutions and other financial instruments.

(a) Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by each business location subject to the Group's established policy,
procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. Credit quality of a customer is
assessed and individual credit limits are defined in accordance with the assessment both in terms of
number of days and amount.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients. In
addition, a large number of minor recetvables are grouped into homogenous groups and assessed for
impairment collectively. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value
of each class of financial assets disclosed in'Note 10. The Group does not hold collateral as security.

(b) Financial instruments and cash deposits

Credit risk from balances with banks is managed by the Group’s treasury department in accordance with
the Group's policy. Investment of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and within
credit limits assigned to each counterparty. The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk for the
components of the balance sheet at March 31, 2023 and March 2022 is the carrying amount as disclosed
in Note 10.

Reconciliation of provision for doubtful debts — Trade receivables(including provision
for expected credit loss)

Rs. In lakhs
March 31, March 31,

3 . 2023 , 2022
Provision at beginning 1,387.54 1,451.67
Addition during the year 1.28 -
Reversal during the year - 64.13
Utilised during the year - -
Prevision at closing 1,388.82 ‘ 1,387.54
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Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk of a shortage of funds by estimating the future cash flows. The Group's
objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank .
overdrafts, cash credit facilities and bank loans. The Group assessed the concentration of risk with
respect to refinancing its debt and concluded it to be low. The Group has access to a sufficient variety of
sources of funding and debt maturity within 12 months can be rolled over with existing lenders. As at
March 31, 2023, the group had no available (March 31, 2022: Rs. 5,265 lakhs) of undrawn committed

- borrowing facilities. -

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities based on contractual
undiscounted payments.

Year ended

March 31,2023

- Borrowings

Trade and other
payables

Other Financial
Liabilities -

Year ended

March 31, 2022

Borrowings

Trade and other
payables

Other Financial -

Liabilities

Rs.in lakhs

‘Less than 3 Jto12
=
On demand months months 1 to 5 years 5 years Total

3,910.01 1,254.14 8,306.83 53,576.40 65,114.33 1?32,161.'71 '
7,464.22 - - - - 7,464.22
522147 - - - - 5,221.47
16,595.70 1,254.14 830683  53,576.40 65,114.33 1,44,847.40
3,105.58 298.49 5,100.24 45,164.29 75,316.50 128,985.10
5,643.82 - - - - 5,643.82
1,651.64 - - - - 1,651.64
10,401.04 298.49 5,100.24 45,164.29 - 75,316.50 136,280.56

The table provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities as of March 31, 2023 as
on undiscounted basis ;

Particulars “As at As at
e March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Minimum Lease Payments:
Not later than one year 2,517.22 2,883.03
Later than one year but not later than five years 11,312.90 10,360.05
Later than five years 48,625.51 48,569.63
Total 62,455.63 - 61,212.71
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37. Capital management

For the purpose of the Group’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium
and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Group. The primary objective of the
Group’s capital management is to maximise the shareholder value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic
conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new
shares. The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus
net debt. The Group includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, trade payables, less
cash and cash equivalents.

Rs. in lakhs
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Borrowings (Note 14 and Note 19) 131,272.68 - 128,001.71

Trade payables (Note 19) 7,464.23 5,643.82
Less: cash and cash equivalents (Note 10) 1,337.65 3,600.41
Net debt ‘ 137,399.26 130,045.12
Total capital . 148,104.16 142,292.05
Capital and net debt '- 285,503.41  272,337.17
Gearing ratio 48% 48%

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Group’s capital management, amongst other things, aims fo
ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define
capital structure requirements.

Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and
borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and
borrowing in the current period.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years
ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022.

38. Segment Reporting

The Group is into Hoteliering business. The Board of Directors of the Company, which has been
identified as being the chief operating decision maker (CODM), evaluates the Group performance,
allocate resources based on the analysis of the various performance indicator of the Group as a single
unit. Therefore there is no reportable segment for the Group as per the requirements of Ind AS 108 ~
“Operating Segments”.

Information about geographical areas

The Group has only domestic operations and hence no information required for the Group as per the
requirements of Ind AS 108 — “Operating Segments”.

Information about major. customers
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39. (a). During the earlier years, one of the subsidiary had entered into an Infrastructure development
and services agreement with Delhi International Airport Limited (DIAL) to develop two hotels at
Aero City, New Delhi for an initial term of 27 years, extendable at the option of the Subsidiary for an
additional period of 30 years provided DIAL gets the extension from Airport Authority of India.
DIAL may to take over the building at ‘Book values’, as defined in the aforesaid agreement in case
the agreement is not extended further

(b) During the earlier. years, one of the subsidiary had entered into a sub-lease agreement with
Mumbai International Airport Limited (‘MIAL’) to develop the hotel at Chhatrapati Shivaji
International Airport at Mumbai for an initial term upto May 02, 2036, extendable at the option of the
Company for an additional period of 30 years provided MIAL gets the extension from Airport
Authority of India. Airport Authority of India may take over the building at “Net Present Value’, as
defined in the aforesaid agreement in case the agreement is not extended further

40. Business Combination - Pooling of Interest Method
Amalgamation of lBegonia Hotels Private Limited & Nightingale Hotels Private Limited

During the earlier year ended March 31, 2021, the National Company Law Tribunal approved the
order of scheme of amalgamation dated March 22, 2021 in respect of amalgamation of Begonia
Hotels Private Limited & Nightingale Hotels Private Limited (the Transferor Company) with Fleur
Hotels Private Limited (the Company) and the scheme was effective from March 31, 2021, The
Appointed date is April 01, 2019.The Company has made allotment of 95,57,461 equity shares to the
sharcholders of the Transferor Company on April 20, 2021 as per the swap ratio mentioned in the
Scheme. The assets, liabilities and reserves of the Transferor Company as at April 01, 2019 has been
taken over at their carrying values. This transaction has been accounted as per Ind AS 103 using
the pooling of interest method and maintaining the identity of the reserves as those appeared :
in the standalone financial statements of the Transferor Company

Censideration
transferred

Date of
Acquisition

Name of the
Company

Proportion of voting
equity interest acquired

Principal
Activity

Begonia Hotels Hotel Business April 1, 2019 100% 1,46,45,682 shares of
Private Limited ' .the Begonia Hotels
: Private Limited before
amalgamation  stands
cancelied and
41,25,544 number of
shares has been issued
to the shareholders of
Begonia Hotels Private
Limited ) for
consideration other than
cash.

Nightingale
Hotels Private
Linyited

Hotel Business

April 1, 2019

100%

13,03,66,000 shares of
the Nightingale Hotels
Private Limited before
amalgamation  stands
cancelled and
54,31,917 number of
shares had been issued
to the shareholders of
Nightingale Hotels
Private  Limited for
consideration other than

cash. NTES
T ®
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The detail of asset acquired and liabilities recognized as at April I, 2019 are as follows:

Rs. in lakhs
Begonia Hotels Nightingale Hotels
Private Limited Private Limited
Assets 7
Property, plant and equipment(including intangible 1,567.95 9,014.07
assets) | : ' _
Financial assets-Non Current 2,301.10 1,154.56
Other Non-Current Assets 46.02 90.33
Inventories 13.67 2142
Financial assets-Current 793.92 1,202.95
Other Current Assets 75.28 56.03
Total Assets 4,797.95 1 1,539.36
Liabilities
Borrowings 25.64 4,947.42
Other financial liabilities 373.67 570.97
Provigions 577 11.56
Other current liabilities 65.87 55.95
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 37.60 -
Total Liabilities 508.54 5,585.89
Other equity 4,142.92 4,649.85
Equity share capital of Fleur Hotels Private Limited 412.55 543.19
issued as per the swap ratio to shareholders of the
Transferor Company. 7
Capital Reserve A/c recognized as on April 1, (266.407) 760.43
2019 ‘

41.  The carrying amount of goodwill has been allocated to CGUs as follows:

Rs in lakhs
Particulars - Amount
Berggruen Hotels Private Limited 15,721.94
Bandhav Resorts Private Limited | 673.42
Hyacinth Hotels Private Limited 4,698.68
Inovoa Hotels & Resorts Limited 1,008.44
Celsia Iotels Private Limited 2,950.74 .
Others 1.13
Total 25,054.35

The Group tests goodwill annually for impairment, or more frequently if there are indications that

“goodwill might be impaired.

o




@

(ii)
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The recoverable amount of the Berggruen Hotels Private Limited, Bandhav Resorts Private Limited,

Hyacinth Hotels Private Limited, Inovoa Hotels & Resorts Limited and Celsia Hotels Private Limited as

a cash-generating unit is determined based on a value in use calculation which uses cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by the directors beyond five year period and a pre-tax WACC rate
of 12.5% (March 31, 2022: 12%) and terminal growth rate of 5.50% (March 31, 2022; 5.0%).

The key assumptions used by management in setting the financial budgets were as follows:

Forecast sales growth rates: Forecast sales growth rates are based on past experience adjusted for
historic measures and market trends analyzed through independent valuer.

Operating profits: Operating profits are forecast based on historical experience of operating margins,
adjusted for the impact of changes to product costs and cost saving initiatives.

Sensitivity analysis:

The Group has conducted an analysis of the sensitivity of the impairment test to changes in the key
assumptions used to determine the recoverable amount for 'each of the group of CGUs to which
goodwill is allocated. The Management believe that any reasonably possible change in the key
assumptions on which the recoverable amount of Berggruen Hotels Private Limited, Bandhav Resorts
Private Limited, Hyacinth Hotels Private Limited, Inovoa Hotels & Resorts Limited and Celsia Hotels
Private Limited is based would not cause the aggregate carrying amount to exceed the aggregate
recoverable amount of the related CGUs.

42. Details of dues to Micro, Smail and Medium Enterprises as per MSMED Act, 2006.

Ry in lakhs

Marech3l1, March31,
2023 2022

the principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining 924.85 385.60
unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each accounting year

.the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 Nil Nil

of the Micro Small and Medium Entetprise Development Act,| -
2006 along with the amounts of the payment made to the
supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting vear

the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in Nil Nil
making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed
day doring the year) but without adding the interest specified
under Micro Small and Mediom Enterprise Development Act,
2006. '

the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end Nil Nil
of each accounting vear; and

the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in Nil Nil
the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as
above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of
disallowance as a deduetible expenditure under section 23 of the

Micro Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006

[
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43, During the previous year March 31, 2022, Fleur Hotels Private Limited had made provision of
estimated stamp duty expense of Rs. 1525.03 lakhs on amalgamation of Meringue Hotels Private
Limited, Begonia Hotels Private Limited and Nightingale Hotels Private Limited, This provision
of stamp duty expensc was a one- time expense of non-recurring nature. As on March 31, 2023,
Company is carrying provision of Rs 86,36 lakhs (refer note 15).

44. During the year Fleur Hotels Private Limited has received Entitlement certificate for subsidy
under Rajasthan Investment Promotion Scheme (RIPS) 2014 dated December 6 2022, based on
which the company shall be eligible for 50% of the SGST paid on Aurika Hotels, Udaipur for a
period of 7 years from the date of the commercial production i.e. 29th October 2019. However
the flow of benefit will accrue from date of the entitlement certificate,

45, During the year ended March 31, 2022, Fleur Hotels Private Limited had reached an arrangement
with the Lessor for termination of lease in Chandigarh which was subsequently approved by the
High Court of Punjab and Haryana on April 18, 2022, Basis this arrangement, lease accounting
for the said property has been terminated by derecognizing Right of Use of Assets, Lease
liability and Security deposits. Accordingly gain on termination of lease for Rs 323.67 Lakhs had
been recognized in Other Income.

' 46. Amendements/Standards notified but not yet effective

a) The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing
standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On
March 31, 2023, the MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 by
issuing the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards} Amendment Rules, 2023, which are applicable
for annual reporting periods beginning from April 01, 2023, as below:

Ind AS 1 — Presentation of Financial Statements- This amendment require companies to disclose
their material accounting policies information rather than their significant accounting policies.
Accounting policy information, together with other information, is material when it can reasonably be
expected to influence decisions of primary users of general purpose financial statements. The
Company does not expect to have any significant impact in its financial statements due to this
amendment

Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors- This amendment
will help entities to distinguish between accounting policies and accounting estimates. The definition
of a change in accounting estimates has been replaced with a definition of accounting estimates,
Under the new definition, accounting estimates are “monefary amounts in financial statements that are
subject to measurement uncertainty”. The Company does not expect to have any significant impact in
its financial statements due to this amendment.

Ind AS 12 — Income Taxes- The amendment has narrowed the scope of the recognition exemption so
that it no longer applies to transactions that, on initial recognition, give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences. The Company does not expect to have any significant impact in its
financial statements due to this amendment.

Other amendments- Other amendments include amendments in' Ind AS 102, Share-based Payments,
Ind AS 103, Business Combination, Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments, Ind AS 115, Revenue from
Contract with Customers, are mainly editorial in nature in order to provide better clarification of
respective Ind AS. The Company does not expect to have any significant impact in its ﬁnanclal
statements due to these amendments
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47.

(@)

Note on Social Security:

The Code on Wages, 2019 and Code on social security, 2020 (“the codes™) relating to employee
compensation and post-employment benefits that received Presidential assent have not been notified.
Further, the related rules for quantifying the financial impact have not been notified. The Company
will assess the impact of the codes when the rules are notified and will record any related impact in the
period in which the Codes become effective.

There are no new amendements/standards (other than above) that are notified, but not yet effective up
to the date of issuance of the Company’s financial statements.

Other Statutory Information

The Company have not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has
been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax

- Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

(i)

(iii)
(iv)

™)

(a)

The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or
pending against the company for holding any Benami property

The company do not have any transaction with companies struck off.

The company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2
of the Act read with Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017.

The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or
entity(ies),including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the

Intermediary shall:

directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner

whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or,

(b) 'provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(vi)
(@)

®

48.

" The Company have not received any funds from any person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or,

provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

There has been no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Group.
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49, Previous year figures have been regrouped/ reclassified wherever necessary to
correspond with the current year classification.

As per our report of even date

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Fleur Hotels Private Limited

o Patanjal G RKoswani ifya Madhav Keswani

Managing Director Director

DIN-00002974 DIN-07208901

Sonali Manchanda - Inder Pal Batra .
.Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer

Mem. no.- F7283

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 29, 2023
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